FOR OFFICE USE ONLY:

City of Harrisonburg Y
APPLICATION FOR tja?armzo
TAX EXEMPTION CECKNUMBER:

The information requested on this application must be filled out completely and returned to the City Manager’s office
on or before January 30. Include a $50 application fee made payable to City of Harrisonburg. Applicant must pay the
cost of the public hearing ad or their share if multiple applicants.

Please attach a copy of your current (1) 501(c)(3) certificate; (2) By-Laws; (3) Articles of Incorporation; (4) most recent
financial statement (andited, if available); (5) most recently filed IRS Form 990 or 990EZ.

ORGANIZATION NAME:

MAILING ADDRESS:

i A_23%03

contact PErsoN anp pHONE:  L1Sa. Shull ~ 940, 44 2. 9900

Type of property for which request is made (circle applicable) PERSONAL PROPERTY REAL ESTATE

If requesting a personal property exemption, please attach a detailed itemized listing of the specific item(s) for which the
exemption is sought.

If requesting a real estate exemption, complete the following on each parcel for which exemption is sought:

Name in which property is held

Property address

Map identification number

Taxes paid for the preceding three (3} years

Name in which property is held

Property address

Map identification number

Taxes paid for the preceding three (3) years

Name in which property is held

Property address

Map identification number

Taxes paid for the preceding three (3) years
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If requesting a personal property exemption, complete the following for each account for which exemption is sought:

| ) ] K i ‘. ‘ .
Name asscssed Harvisonburg Children's Museur Znc
Account number 3;6@? ga} “b
Asset type and location address Bu&; LSS egin 0”\2“} _ ‘}T)U } S, E"‘ }L{[&J (o mrmukr’é? '/!/;W

150 5. Mad Streer Narvisenbuyg ) VA 2281

Taxes paid for the preceding three (3) years
p p g three (3) y C;?Mg Srses—¢1EFED P o 33
No P/ev’:ou.f 7/t<><es

Natme assessed

Account number

Asset type and location address

Taxes paid for the preceding three (3) years
Please complete the following questions as referenced in City Ordinance 4-2-17 (copy enclosed) and Code of Virginia
§ 58.1-3651.

1. Do you currently own prope{ty in the City that is already tax-exempt?
Yes No

1f yes, what is the property Map D #? ?‘6(6{5‘{\ C‘_Ll P(OPQF Hl ?( a0 | D 56(?3 3
On what date was the exemption granted? mCU—‘ A ‘“} J(;I\OI (
How/By whom was the exemption granted? Ql% Céh.ﬂ Ct L

2. Does the organization have any rule, regulation, policy, or practice that unlawfuily discriminates on the basis of

religious conviction, race, color, sex, or national origin? Yes v/ No

3. Does the organization hold a current annual alcoholic beverage license from the Virginia Alcoholic Beverage
Control Board for serving alcoholic beverages on the property? If yes, please attach a copy.

Yes N No

4, What compensation is paid to each director, officer, and employee of the organization?

(1) Execulive Di cackor 4 11,300 (FT)Develspment Dicedir:

Cﬁf)@?ﬁ( afiens Mﬂmfmﬁ : ﬂ?}”’f 032 \0 E)g(-'fh‘ e np
Board Menbers’ 40 COM?ﬁnSa“F@@

fso bl
2000

Yo s

e

5. ‘What services does each director, officer, and employee render? . .
To Cafr;; (JLJ' 7L/~a MiLS eum's & limfw;m/ issions  Gn 0( /W/D\/r cz(.’.
Pi CJLLCIQ/}J overSight of a /] Carned and Aonsted [evén wed,

6. Does any part of the net earnings of the organization benefit any individual? If so, please explain. .
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No

7. What percentage of the services provided by this organization is generated by funds received from donations,
contributions, or local, state, or federal grants or funds? For purpeses of this question, donation may include the

providing of personal services or the contribution of in-kind or other material services. %

8. What specific services does the organization provide for the common good of the public?
Hands-on, interackive learning ex periences though
exhibits, enrichment classes) Field v Ps, firee

adpission _evends.

9. What percentage of the activities of the organization involves carrying on propaganda or otherwise attempting

to influence legislation?

6]

10. Does the organization participate or intervene in any political campaign on behalf of any candidate for public

office?

Yes \/ No

1, L ] § G S}LLL// (printed name), do hereby certify that the information provided

and/or attached to this Application for Tax Exemption, is true and accurate, to the best of my knowledge. I

acknowledge that knowingly providing false information will result in criminal charges pursuant to Code of Virginia §
58.1-11. T acknowledge that the organization I represent may be subjected to audit by the Commissioner of the
Revenue, or an appointed employee of the Commissioner of the Revenue, to ensure that all information provided is

true and correct.

Ofm Lhdl | = 36-2020

Signature ¢ . Date
gxec c&L: J e le&c,,‘/ﬁ/‘

Title

v’);?ﬁ’ (,é/é?/L (ﬂ/ A/h (\//g ""‘\\\“‘:‘EHJ/Z/;", . My commission expires: 2/ j D//;? [ /

Notar PTG

T8 elsie
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INTERNAL REVENUE SERVICE ~ DEPARTMENT OF THE TREASURY
P, 0. BOX 2508 .

CINCINNATI, OH 45201
Employer Identification Number:

oate:  MAR 2 6 2002 161683676
17053068793018
HARRISONBURG CHILDRENS MUSEUM Contact Person:
PO BOX 957 , ' FDWARD S SCHLAACK 1D# 31536
HARRISONBURG, VA 22803 Contact Telephone Number:

(877) 829-5500
Public Charity Status:
170X DA (vT)

Dear Applicaft:

Our letter dated January 14, 2004, stated you would be exempt from Federal
income tax under section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code, and you would
be treated as a public charity, rather than as a private foundation, during

an advance ruling period. .

Rased on the information you submitted, you are classified as a public charity
under the Code section 1listed in the heading of this letter. Since your
exempt status was not under consideration, you continue to be classified as

an organization exempt. from Federal income tax under section 501(c)(3) of the

Code. :

Publication 557, Tax-Exempt Status for Your Organization, provides detailed
information about your rights and responsibilities as an exempt organization.
You may request a copy by calling the toll-free number for forms,

(800) 829-3676. .Information is also available on our Internet Web Site at
W, 1rs . gov.

" If you have general -questions aboul exempt organizatﬁons, please call our

£o11-Tree number shown in the heading.

Please keep this letier.in your permanent records.

Sincerely yours,

//,a: f? ) 4
A e
» - e FoeT g E
iy s e R MO
jt{,‘n’ (£ '{i»-b_ .

P ”

R AT ;

Robert Choi
Director, Exempt Organizations
Rulings and Agreements

Letter 1050 (DO/CG)



EXPLORE 755
MORE::

Harrisonburg Children’s Museum

Amended and Restated Bylaws of the Harrisonburg
Children’s Museum Trading As Explore More

Harrisonburg Children’s Museum t/a Explore More, a nonstock corporation organized and existing under
the provisions of the Virginia Nonstock Corporation Act, Chapter 10, Title 13.1 of the Code of Virginia (the
“Code") hereby adopts the following Amended and Restated Bylaws which shall govern the management
and operation of the corporation’s business and the regulation of its affairs. In accordance with Section
13.1-822 of the Code, these Amended and Restated Bylaws shall become effective upon ratification,
approval and formal adoption by the Board of Directors.

Article 1. Name
The name of this corporation shall be Harrisonburg Children’s Museum. This corporation trades as
Explore More and shall be referred to as Explore More in these Amended and Restated Bylaws.

Article II. Mission
Explore More is a community-inspired museum designed to engage young minds through interactive,

multi-sensory learning experiences.

Explore More will provide opportunities for children and their families to explore creative and performing
arts, culture, science, technology and literature. Through these experiences, children will develop a
greater understanding of themselves and their world, thus promoting cognitive, social-emotional, and
motor development.

The specific and primary purpose for which this corporation is formed is to create, to establish, and to
operate a nonprofit, nonsectarian, non-discriminatory, non-partisan, independent and permanent
establishment, open to the public and administered in the public interest.

Article III. Membership
1. As stated in Article II of the Articles of Incorporation, Explore More shall have no Members within the

meaning of Section 13.1-837 of the Code.

2. Explore More shall offer to the general public the opportunity to join the museum via a membership
subscription. Membership subscriptions shall consist of several different categories, based on the fees
paid. Designation of the individual categories and the amount of fees owed by each shall be established
by the Executive Director and revised as necessary. The Executive Director shall have the authority to
issue membership subscriptions, without a fee, when he or she deems it appropriate to do so, subject to
the approval of the Executive Committee.

3. Annual membership subscription entitles the holder(s) to free admission to Explore More, and other
benefits as determined by the Executive Director.

4. Completion of the designated application form and payment of any designated annual fee shall
constitute a completed membership subscription, at which time an annual membership card shall be
issued.

5. Annual membership subscription fees shall be set by the Executive Director and shall be reviewed
annually and revised when necessary. :

6. All membership subscription categories are non-voting.



Article IV. Nonmember Museum Admission

1. Explore More welcomes individuals who do not hold paid membership subscriptions described in
Article III above, to visit Explore More and to participate in Explore More HEM activities, unless such
activities are designated as “member-only” events,

2 Individuals who do not hold paid membership subscriptions described in Article III above shall pay an
admission fee for each individual visit to Explore More. The admission fee shall be set by the Executive
Director and shall be reviewed annually and revised when necessary. The Executive Director shall have
the authority to admit individuals to the museum via a free pass, without a fee, when he or she deems it
appropriate to do so, subject to the approvai of the Executive Committee.

Article V. Board of Directors

1. The Board of Directors acts on behalf of Explore More to establish general policies and to provide for
the continuous operation of the corporation consistent with the philosophy, policies, bylaws, and other
regulations of the corporation, as well as applicable law.

2. The Board of Directors shall consist of not less than seven and not more than 20 directors at any one
time.

3. (a) Each Board member shall serve a two-year term of office, with the exception of the founding
Board. Of the founding Board, fifty percent (50%) shall be one-year terms and fifty percent (50%) shall
be two-year terms. Consecutive terms may be served. Members of the Board intending to serve more
than three consecutive terms must absent themselves from the Board for a period of at least one year
before becoming eligible for a fourth term of office.

(b) Notwithstanding the foregoing, if a Director is serving as President during the last year of his or
her third consecutive two-year term, that Director’s third term shall be extended automatically for an
additional year. That Director shall continue to serve for the additional year as a Member of the Board of
Directors, in the capacity of Immediate Past President.

4. The Board of Directors shall elect four officers. Said officers shall be a slate of nominees from the
sitting Board of Directors. The Officers shall be elected by a majority vote of the members present and
voting at any fourth quarter Board of Directors’ meeting, and shall assume office on January 1 of the
following year. The administrative year shall run from January 1 of each year through December 31.

5. The four officers, each serving a one-year term of office, shall be President, Vice President, Secretary,
and Treasurer. Officers intending to serve as President, Vice President and Secretary for more than two
consecutive terms of that office must absent themselves from the position of that office for at least one
year before becoming eligible for a third term as that officer. An officer serving as Treasurer may serve
four consecutive terms of that office and then must absent themselves from the position of that office for
at least one year before becoming eligible for a fifth term as that officer.

6. No person serving as a salaried employee of Explore More shall be eligible for the Board of Directors.

7. In the event that any office becomes vacant, any remaining officer shall call a meeting of the Board of
Directors for the purpose of electing a replacement to complete the unexpired portion of the term of
office.

8. A member of the Board of Directors shall be considered to have resigned from his or her position if
said Board member misses more than two consecutive meetings without notifying an officer.

9. Meetings of the Board of Directors shall be held a minimum of four times each year, unless decided
to the contrary by a majority of the Board of Directors. Unless otherwise set by resolution, the Annual
Meeting, as contemplated by Code Section 13.1-838 shall be held in December of each year. The

2




purpose of the Annual Meeting shall be to consider general organization, appointment of officers, and
consideration of any other business that may properly be brought before the meeting. The failure to hold
the Annual Meeting at the time stated herein shail not affect the validity of any corporate action,

10. Regular Board Meetings shall be held according to a schedule provided by the President at the
January Board Meeting.

11. Board elections shall take place at a Board Meeting during the final quarter of the calendar year.
New Board members shall begin serving their term of office on January 1 of the next calendar year,

12. The President, Vice President, Secretary, Treasurer and Immediate Past President, together with any
other individual whom the President may designate, shall function as an Executive Committee, The
Executive Director is expected to attend all meetings of the Executive Committee, unless excused by the
President. The Executive Committee shall meet and further the business of Explore More when the full
Board cannot be consulted. All Executive Committee decisions are subject to ratification by the Board of
Directors and alt decisions from the Executive Committee meetings must be reported to the full Board of
Directors.

13. The Executive Committee shall determine a slate of nominees for vacant Board positions. New
Board members must be approved by a two-thirds (2/3) majority of all Board members.

14. Recall of any elected Board member shali be accomplished in the following manner:

(a) Recall may be initiated by a resolution of the Board of Directors signed by more than half of
the entire Board. Recall may also be initiated by a petition from paid and/or volunteer empioyees
of Explore More, presented to the Board.

(b) A special meeting of the Board of Directors must be called within thirty (30) days of the
presented resolution.

(c) A recall and removal of an elected Director shall require a vote in favor of such recall by two-
thirds {2/3) of the Board of Directors.

15. The Board President may call a closed session of the Board of Directors.

Article VI. Officers & Duties
1. The officers of HCM shall be a President, a Vice President, a Secretary, and a Treasurer.

2. The term of office shall be a one-year term for each officer.
3. The Board of Directors shall elect all officers.
4, The duties of the President are as follows:
(a) The President shall preside at all meetings of the Board of Directors.

(b) The President shall have the authority to appoint committees when needed and to call special
meetings when needed.

(c) The President shall coordinate the operation of Explore More in accordance with the
provisions of the bylaws and the current operating pracedures,

(d) The President shail execute in the name of the corporation all contracts or other instruments
that are authorized by the Board.

5. In the event of the absence, death, inability, or refusal to act by the President, the Vice President shall
perform the duties and be vested with the authority of the President.

6. The duties of the Vice President are as foliows:
(a) The Vice President shall perform any duties provided for elsewhere in these bylaws and any

3



other official duties the President may assign.
7. The duties of the Secretary are as follows:

(a) The Secretary shall record and distribute to Board members the minutes of the meetings of
the Board of Directors.

(b) Once the Secretary’s minutes are approved at the next meeting, the Secretary shall be
responsible for seeing that the minutes are placed in the corporate books.

(c) The Secretary shall handle the general correspondence of the Organization including
distribution of mail at the board and general meetings.

8. The duties of the Treasurer are as follows:
(a) The Treasurer shall be custodian of the funds for HEM Explore More.

(b) If requested to do so, the Treasurer shall work with the Executive Director to prepare and
present a proposed annual budget to the Board of Directors.

(¢) The Treasurer shall report the financial position of the corporation at all regular meetings of
the Board of Directors.

(d) The Treasurer, with the Executive Director, shall be responsible for implementing any
oversight controls and procedures pertaining to Explore More’s funds and financial reporting.

(e) The Treasurer shall perform such other duties and possess such powers as are relevant to
that office, as are provided for elsewhere in these bylaws, or as shall be assigned by the
President or the Board of Directors.

Article VII. Executive Director
1. The Executive Director shall be responsible for the day-to-day operations of Explore More, subject to
direction by the Board of Directors.

2. The Executive Director is not a Board Member.
3. The Board of Directors shall maintain an Executive Director’s job description.

Article VIII. Committees

1. The Board of Directors may create and appoint members to one or more committees and appoint
members of the Board of Directors to chair them. Members of the committees, other than the
chairperson, need not be Directors. Each committee shall have two or more members, each of whom
shall serve at the pleasure of the Board of Directors.

2. The provisions of these Bylaws, as well as those of Code sections 13.1-864 through 13.1-868 which
govern meetings, action without meetings, notice and waiver of notice, and quorum and voting
requirements of the Board of Directors, apply to committees and their members as well.

3. Each committee may exercise the authority of the Board of Directors, subject to Section 13.1-869(D)
of the Code.

Article IX. Advisory Board

1. The Board of Directors may appoint Advisory Boards at its discretion as particular needs arise.
2. Specific duties of the Advisory Board shall be outlined at the time the Advisory Board is formed.
3. Advisory Board members are not members of the Explore More Board of Directors.

Article X. Honorary Board
1. The Board of Directors may appoint an Honorary Board at its discretion as particular needs arise.

2. Specific duties of the Honorary Board shall be outlined at the time the Honorary Board is formed.
4




3. Honorary Board members are not members of the Explore More Board of Directors.

Article XI. Finance
1. Directors shall serve without compensation, except for reimbursement of reasonable expenses
incurred on behalf of Explore More.

2. The Executive Director and one member of the Executive Committee, or alternatively, two members
of the Executive Committee shall authorize those expenses incurred in the operation of Explore More that
exceed $500.00. Two signatures shall be required for approval. The Executive Director or any member
of the Executive Committee is authorized to approve expenses up to and including $500.00. Only one
signature is required.

3. The Executive Director shall be responsible for the preparation of an annual budget that shall be
approved by the Board of Directors prior to January 1 of each year.

4. The Board of Directors shall have the authority to appoint and individual or firm to conduct an audit
of Explore More when the Executive Committee determines an audit to be necessary or advisable,

Article XII, Voting
1. Each member of the Board of Directors shall have one vote,

2. Action may be taken on a matter by the Board of Directors only at a meeting at which a quorum is
present. A majority of the entire Board of Directors shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of
business.

3. If a quorum is present when a vote is taken, the affirmative vote of the majority of Directors present
is an act of the Board of Directors.

4, The following items-require the approval of two-thirds (2/3) of the Board of Directors:
{a) Amendments to the bylaws
(b) Sale/purchase/lease of real estate
(c) Recall and removal of Board members
(d) Hiring or firing of the Executive Director

5. Written notice is required for the actions in Article XII, Section 4 and must be included in the official
notification for a regular meeting of the HCM Board of Directors.

Article XIII. Dissolution of the Corporation

Should dissolution of Explore More become necessary, it shall be accomplished in accordance with the
applicable state laws for nonprofit organizations, as is stated in the Code of Virginia, Title 13.1, Chapter
10, and in the Articles of Incorporation..

Articie XIV. Rules of Order
"Robert's Rules of Order, Newly Revised" shall be the parliamentary authority of all matters of procedure
not covered by these bylaws or by other rules of procedure.

Revised and approved 11-19-2014



ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION
OF
HARRISONBURG CHILDREN’S MUSEUM
The undersigned Incorporafor hereby establishes a nonstock corporation subject to the
requirements of the laws of the Commonwealth of Virginia, pursuant to the provision of Chapter
10, of Title 13.1 of the Code of Virginia, 1950, as amended, and to _that end, hercby adopts

Articles of Incorporation as follows:

ARTICLE ]
Name

The name of the organization shall be Harrisonburg Children’s Museum

(“Organization”).

ARTICLE I

Members

The Organization shall not have any members.

ARTICLE III
Registered Office and Agent
The initial registered office of the Organization shall be located in the City of
Harrisonburg, Virginia, and the address of the initial registered office shall be 111 East Market

Street, P. O. Box 1287, Harrisonburg, VA 22803. The name of the initial registered agent,



whose business address js identical with such registered office, shall be Jeffrey G. Lenhart, who

is a resident of the Commonwealth of Virginia and a member of the Virginia State Bar.

ARTICLE IV
Pumosé and Powers

The Organization is organized and shall be operated exclusively for nonprofit, charitable
and educational purposes, The Organization shall have all powers and authorities now or
hereafter conferred upon nonstock, not-for-profit corporations organized under the laws of the
Commonwealth of Virginia; provided, however, that (a) no part of the ﬁet earnings of the
Organization shall inure to the benefit of, or be distributable to, its officers, directors, or other
sprivate persons, except that the Organization shall be authorized and empowered to pay
reasonable compensation for services rendered and to make payments and distributions in
furtherance of the purposes for which it is organized, (b) no substantial part of the activities of
the Organization shall be the car-rying on of propaganda or otherwise attempting to influence
legislation (except as provided in Section 501(h) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as
amended, (the Code)), and the Organization shall not participate in, or intervene in (including the
publishing or distribution of statements), any political campaign on behalf of any candidate for
public officer, and {c) the Organization shall not carry on any other activities not permitted to be
carried on (i) by a corporation operating exclusively for charitable, religious, and educational
purposes within the meaning of, and exempt from federal income tax under, Section 501(c)(3) of
the Code, or (ii) by a corporation, contributions to which are deductible under Section 170(¢)(2)
of the Code.

The specific purposes of the Organization are as follows:




(®)

(b)

©

(d)

(€

6

To create, establish and operate a non-profit, non-sectarian, non-discriminatory,
non-partisan, independent and permanent establishment open to the public and
administered in the public interest.

To provide opportunities for children and families to explore creative and
performing arts, culture, science, technology and literature.

To provide interactive, multi-sensory learning expetiences that promote a greater
understanding of their lives and their world.

To provide exhibité and activities for a variety of leaming styles including
auditory, visual and tactile learning experiences.

To support and enhance the educational goals of local schools, including public,
private and home schools.

To provide exhibits highlighting the diversity, history, and quality of life in the

Shenandoah Valley.

ARTICLE YV

Board of Directors

The affairs of the Organization shall be managed by a Board of Directors. The number of

directions shall be no fewer than seven (7) and no more than twenty (20), with the exact number

to be fixed by resolution of the Board of Directors. Directors shall be elected by the directors in

office. Any director named between annual meetings shall serve for the unexpired term of the

director whom he or she is replacing, Each Board member shall serve a two-year term of office

with the exception of the founding Board. Of the founding Board, half will serve one-year terms

and half will serve two-year terms.



ARTICLE VI
Elimination Of Liability And Indemnification

To the full extent that the Virginia Nonstock Corporation Act, as it exists on the date
hereof or may hereafter be amended, permits the limitation or elimination of liability of members
of the Board of Directors or Organization officers, such persons shall not be liable to the
Organization for monetary damages. Any amendment or repeal of this Article shall lnot
adverseiy affect any rights of protection of a member of the Board of Directors or officer of the
Organization for or with respect to any of their acts or omissions prior to such amendment or
repeal. |

To the full extent permitted .and in the manner prescribed by the Virginia Nonstock
Coxp‘oration Act and any other applicable law, the Organization shall indemnify a member of the
Board of Directors or officer of the Organization who is or was a party to any such proceeding
by reason of the fact that he is or was such a director, officer, employce or agent of another
corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust, employee benefit plan, or other enterprise. The
Board of Directors is hereby empowered, by majority vote of a quorum of disinterested members ‘
of the Board of Directors, fo contract in advance to indemnify any member of the Board of
Directors or Organization officer.

The Board of Directors | is hereby empowered, by majority vote of a quorum of
disinterested members of the Board of Directors, to cause the Organization to indemnify or
contract in advance to indemnify any person not specified above who was or is a party to any
proceeding, by reason of the fact that he is or was an employee or agent of the Organization, or is

or was serving at the request of the Organization as a director, officer, employee or agent of



another corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust, cmi)loyee benefit plan or other enterprise, to
the same extent as if such person were specified above as one to whom indemnification is
granted.

"The Organization may purchase and maintain insurance to indemnify it against the whole
or any portion of the liability assumed by it in accordance with this Article and may also procure
insurance, in sucﬁ amounts as the Board of Directors may determine, on behalf of any person
who is or was an employee or agent of the Organization, or is or was serving at the request of the
Organizatioh as a director, officer, employee or agenf of another corporation, partnership, joint
venture, trust, employee benefit plan or other enterprise, against any liability asserted against or
incurred by any such person in any such capacity or arising from his status as such, whether or
not the Organization would have power to indemnify him against such liability under the
provisions of this Article.

In the event there has been a change in the composition of a majority of the Board of
Directors after the date of the alleged act or omission with respect to which indemnification is
claimed, any determination as to indemnification and advancement of expenses with respect to
any claim for indemnification shall be made by special legal counsel agreed upon by the Board
of Directors and the p;oposed indemnitee. If the Board of Directors and the proposed indemnites
are unable to agree upon such special legal counsel, the Board of Directors and the proposed
indemnitee each shall select a nominee, and the nomi_nees shall select such special legal counsel.

The provisions of this Article shall be applicable to all actions, claims, suits or
proceedings commenced after the adoption hereof, whether arising from any action taken or
failure to act before or after such adoption. No amendment, modification or repeal of this Article

shall diminish the rights provided hereby or diminish the rights to indemnification with respect to




any claim, issue or matter iI; any then pending or subsequent proceeding that is based in any
material respect on any alleged action or failure to act prior to such amendment, modification or
repeal.

Reference herein to members of the Board of Directors, offices, employees, or agents
shall include former members of the Boatd of Directors, officers, employees and agents and their

respective estates, heirs, executors and administrators.

ARTICLE Y1
Dissolution

Upon the dissolution of the Organization, the Board of Directors shall, after paying or
making provision for the payment of all the debts and liabilities of the Organization, di stribute all
of its remaining assets to such other organizations designated by the Board of the Organization to
be pursuing a similar mission and which are organized and operated exclusively for exempt
purposes within the meaning of Section 502(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. Any such
assets not so disposed of shall be disposed of by the Circuit Court for the Couﬁty of
Rockingham, Virginia

IN WITNESS WHEREOQF, I have hereunto set my hand this ____ day of September,

2003.

Incorporator

1351/1/20982.doc
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Martin

Beachy &
Arehart

cernﬁed public accountants

INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANT'S REVIEW REPORT

To the Board of Directars
Harrisonburg Children's Museum, Inc. dba Explore More Discovery Museum

We have reviewed the accompanying financial statements of Harrisonburg Children’s Museum, Inc. dba
Explore More Discovery Museum (a non-profit organization), which comprise the statement of financial
position as of December 31, 2018, and the related statement of activities, changes in net assets,
functional expenses and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial
statements. A review includes primarily applying analytical procedures to management's financial data and
making inquiries of management. A review is substantially less in scope than an audit, the objective of
which is the expression of an opinion regarding the financial statements as a whole. Accordingly, we do
not express such an opinion.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement whether due to fraud or
error.

Accountant’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to conduct the review engagement in accordance with Statements on Standards for
Accounting and Review Services promulgated by the Accounting and Review Services Committee of the
AICPA. Those standards require us to perform procedures to abtain limited assurance as a basis for
reporting whether we are aware of any material modifications that should be made to the financial
statements for them to be in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America. We believe that the results of our procedures provide a reasonable basis for our
conclusion.

Accountant’s Conclusion
Based on our review, we are not aware of any material modifications that should be made to the

accompanying financial statements in order for them to be in accordance with accounting principies
generally accepted in the United States of America.

M% Flowdat, ALc

Harrisonburg, Virginia
September 23, 2019

209 North High Street Harrisonburg, Virginia 22802 | Phone 540.433.2488 | Fax 540.433.7151




HARRISONBURG CHILDREN’S MUSEUM, INC.
dba EXPLORE MORE DISCOVERY MUSEUM
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
December 31, 2018
(See Accountant’s Review Report)

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 694,826
Pledges receivable, net (Note K) 66,864
Inventories 13,971
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 775,661
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
at cost, less accumulated depreciation (Note F) 2,916,351
OTHER ASSETS
Pledges receivable, long-term, net (Note K) 142,913
Investments (Note E) 201,068
343,982
TOTAL ASSETS $ 4,035,994
LIABILITIES
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Current portion of capital lease obligation (Note J) $ 64,284
Accounts payable 5,220
Accrued expenses 9,707
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 79,211
CAPITAL LEASE OBLIGATION, net of current portion (Note J) 33,147
TOTAL LIABILITIES 112,358
NET ASSETS
Without donor restrictions 3,492,865
With donor restrictions (Note [) 430,771
TOTAL NET ASSETS 3,823,636
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS $ 4,035,994

Seea accompanying notes to financial statements.
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HARRISONBURG CHILDREN’S MUSEUM, iNC.
dba EXPLORE MORE DISCOVERY MUSEUM
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
Year Ended December 31, 2018
{See Accountant’s Review Report)

Without
Donor With Donor
Resfrictions Restrictions Total
SUPFPORT AND REVENUE
Contributions $ 369,090 $ 456,135 $ 825,225
Admissions 151,786 - 151,786
Events 53,568 - 53,568
Rental income 1,300 - 1,300
Fundraising, net of direct costs of $55,813 84,836 - 84,836
Membership dues 141,455 - 141,455
Store sales, net of direct costs of $3,278 12,496 - 12,496
investment income 2,594 - 2,584
Discount amortization 1,769 - 1,769
Realized and unrealized gains on
securities, net {162) - {162)
Net assets released from restrictions 88,662 (88,662) -
Total Support and Revenue 907,394 367,473 1,274,867
EXPENSES
Program services 589,982 - 589,982
Suppotiing services
Fundraising 52,378 - 52,378
Management and general 65,996 - 65,996
Total Expenses 708,356 - 708,356
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS $ 199,038 $ 367,473 $ 566,511

See accompanying notes to financial statements,
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HARRISONBURG CHILDREN’S MUSEUM, INC.
dba EXPLORE MORE DISCOVERY MUSEUM
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

Year Ended December 31, 2018

(See Accountant’s Review Report)

Without
Donor With Donor
Restrictions Restrictions Total
Net Assets Balance, December 31, 2017 $ 3,293,827 $ 63,298 $ 3,357,125
Change in Net Assets 199,038 367,473 566,511
Net Assets Balance, December 31, 2018 $ 3,492,865 $ 430,771 $ 3,023,636

See accompanying nates to financial statements.
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HARRISONBURG CHILDREN’S MUSEUM, INC.
dba EXPLLORE MORE DISCOVERY MUSEUM
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Year Ended December 31, 2018
(See Accountant’s Review Report)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITES

Cash received from contributions $ 413,914
Cash received from memberships 293,241
Cash received from fundraisers 84,836
Cash received from services 67,364
Investment income received 3,687
Cash paid to employess (294,809)
Cash paid to suppliers (225,155)
Interest paid {7,111)
NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES 335,967
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property, exhibits and equipment (67,679)
NET CASH USED BY INVESTING ACTIVITIES (57,679)
NET INCREASE IN CASH 278,288
CASH AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 416,538
CASH AT END OF YEAR 3 694,826

a

See accompanying hotes to financial statements.
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HARRISONBURG CHILDREN’S MUSEUM, INC.
dba EXPLORE MORE DISCOVERY MUSEUM
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2018

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Nature of Activities

Hartisonburg Children’s Museum, Inc. dba Explore More Discovery Museum {"Explore Maore”) (a nonprofit
corporation) operates in the central portion of the Shenandoah Valley of Virginia. Explore More’s goal is to
provide a hands-on, interactive museum where children and their families can explore and learn together.
They strive to engage young minds through interactive, multi-sensory learning experiences that promote
greater understanding of themselves and their world by providing yvouth a museum that offers a wide
range of activities including drama, creative arts, culture, science, technology and more.

Basis of Accounting

The financial statements of Explore More have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting and,
accordingly, reflect all significant receivables, payables, and other liabilities.

Basis of Presentation

Explore More is required to report information regarding its financial position and activities according to
two classes of net assets that are based upon the existence of absence of restrictions on use that are
placed by its donors: net assets without donor restrictions and net assets with donor restrictions.
Contributions that are restricted by the donor are reported as increases in net assets without donor
restrictions if the restriction expires in the reporting period in which the contribution is recognized. All other
donor-restricted contributions are reported as increases in net assets with donor restrictions. When a
restriction expires, net assets with donor restrictions are reclassified to net assets without donor
restrictions and reported in the Statement of Activities as net assets released from restrictions.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Management considers all highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less when
purchased to be cash equivalents unless they are included in a managed investment portfolio. Explore
More maintains its cash and cash equivalents in bank deposit accounts which, at times, may exceed
federally insured limits. Explore More has not experienced any losses in such accounts and does not
believe it is exposed to significant credit risk with these deposits.

Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or net realizable value and primarily consist of items available
for sale in the Discovery Store.

Investments

investments in securities are reparted at fair value based on readily determinable market values. Fair
value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. Donated investments are recorded at
fair value based an the date of donation.

Purchases and sales of securities are recorded on a trade date basis. Interest income is recorded on the
accrual basis. Dividends are recorded on the ex-dividend date. Investment income or loss (including
realized and unrealized gains and losses, interest, and dividends) is included in the change in unrestricted
net assets unless the income ar loss is restricted by donor or law.
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HARRISONBURG CHILDREN’S MUSEUM, INC.
dba EXPLORE MORE DISCOVERY MUSEUM
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2018

NOTE A — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, continued

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost at date of acquisition or fair value at date of gift. Depreciation
is computed by the straight-ine method based on estimated useful lives of the property, building
improvements (39 years), and equipment/exhibits (7 — 10 years). Construction in progress represents
internally constructed improvements and exhibits which are not yet placed in service and therefore, no
depreciation has been calculating on these assets. See Note D for additional details related to property

and equipment.

Public Support and Revenue Racognition

Contributions are generally available for unrestricted use in the related year unless specifically restricted
by the donor. Grants and contributions of cash and other assets are reported as temporarily restricted
support if they are received with donor stipulations that limit the use of donated assets. When a donor
restriction expires, that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose restriction is accomplished,
temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified to unrestricted net assets and reported in the statement
of activities as net assets released from restrictions. Restrictions for capital assets are released when the

assets are constructed or purchased.

Contributions of non-cash assets are recorded at their fair values on the date received. For the year
ended December 31, 2018, Explore More has recorded contribution revenue and a fixed asset for the
receipt of an airplane with an esfimated fair value of $75,000 donated for use in an exhibit.

The value of donated services that create or enhance nonfinancial assets or that require specialized skilis,
are provided by individuals possessing those skills, and would otherwise be purchased if not provided by
donation, are recorded as revenues and expenses in the period received. For the year ended December
31, 2018, Explore More has recorded $250 of in-kind support related to professional services received.

Explore More receives free-use facilities which are provided by various vendors for their events. [n
addition, the Organization also receives donated internet service. The value of the facilities and utilities are
recorded at fair value as contribution revenue and occupancy expense. For the year ended December 31,
2018, the Organization estimates the fair value of these expenses to be $7,160. See Note J for additional

information related fo in-kind support.

Explore More receives donations of consumable goods and small tools for use in exhibits. The value of
these items are recorded at fair value as contribution revenue and exhibit expense. For the year ended
December 31, 2018, the Organization estimates the fair value of these expenses to be $1,300.

Advertising
Explore More follows a policy of charging the costs of advertising to expense as incurred. Advertising
expense was $11,763 for the year ended December 31, 2018.

Functional Allocation of Expenses

The costs of providing the various programs and activities have been summarized on a functional basis in
the statement of activities. Accordingly, certain costs have been allocated among the programs based
upon employee time and the square footage of the facilities. Some costs are directly attributable to a

specific activily.
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HARRISONBURG CHILDREN’'S MUSEUM;, INC.
dba EXPLORE MORE DISCOVERY MUSEUM
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2018

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, continued

Income Tax Status

Explore More is exempt from federal income tax under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code.
The Organization believes that is has appropriate support for any tax positions taken, and as such, does
not have any uncertain tax positions that are material to the financial statements. In addition, Explore More
qualifies for the charitable contribution deduction under Section 170(b}{1}(A) and has been classified as
an organization other than a private foundation under Section 509(a)}(2).

Explore More's federal exempt organization information returns (Form 990) are subject to examination by
the Internal Revenue Service for three years after they were filed.

Estimates and Assumptions

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of
the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.
Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Pledges Receivable

Conditional promises to give are not recognized in the financial statements until the conditions are
substantially met or explicitly waived by the donor. Uncanditional promises to give that are expected to be
collected within one year are recorded at net realizable value as pledges receivable. Unconditional
promises to give that are expected to be collected in more than one year are recorded as pledges
receivable at fair value, which is measured as the present value of theilr future cash flows. The discounts
on those amounts are computed using risk-adjusted interest rates applicable to the years in which the
promises are received. Amortization of the discounts is included in contribution revenue. In the absence of
donor stipulations to the contrary, promises with payments due in future periods are restricted to use after
the due date. Promises that remain uncollected more than one year after their due dates are written off
unless the donors indicate that payment is merely postponed.

Pledges receivable are stated at the amount management expects to collect from outstanding balances.
Management provides for probable uncoliectible amounts through a charge to bad debt expense (included
in other expenses on the statement of functional expenses) and a credit to a valuation allowance based on
its assessment of the current status of individual accounts. Balances that are still outstanding after
management has used reasonable collection effarts are written off through a charge to the valuation
allowance and a credit to pledges receivable. There was a $9,035 valuation allowance for pledges
receivable as of December 31, 2018.

Refer to Note K for more information regarding pledges receivable.

Date of Managemen{'s Review

Management has evaluated subsequent events through September 23, 2019, the date which the financial
statements were available to be issued.
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HARRISONBURG CHILDREN’S MUSEUM, INC.
dba EXPLORE MORE DISCOVERY MUSEUM
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2018

NOTE B~ CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLE

On August 18, 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-14, Not-for-Profit Entities (Topic 958) — Presentation of
Financial Statements of Not-for-Profit Entities. The Organization has adjusted the presentation of its
financial statements accordingly, applying the changes refrospectively to the beginning net assets
presented. The new standards change the following aspects of the Organization’s financial statements:

The temporarily restricted and permanently restricted net asset classes have been combined into
single net asset class called netf assets with donor restrictions.

The unrestricted net asset class has been renamed net assets without donor restrictions.

The format of the statement of cash flows has changed to the direct method of reporting cash
flows from operations, which we believe to be more understandable for the users of our financial

statements

The financial statements include a new disclosure about liquidity and availability of resources (Note
C).

The changes have the following effect on net assets at December 31, 2017:

As orginally After Adoption

Net Asset Class presented of ASU 2016-14

Unrestricted net assets $ 3,203,827 $ -
Temporarily restricted net assets 63,298 -
- 3,293,827

Net assets without donor restrictions

Net assets with donor restrictions - 63,298

$ 3,357,125 $ 3,357,125

NOTE C — LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILTY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

The following table reflects the Museum's financial assets as of December 31, 2018, reduced for amounts
not available for general expenditure within one year. Financial assets are considered unavailable when
illiquid or not convertible to cash within one year, assets held for others, or because the governing board
has set aside the funds for a specific purpose. These board designations could be drawn upon if the board
approves that action. The Museum considers general expenditures to be all expenditures related to its
ongoing activities as well as the conduct of services undertaken to support those activities to be general

expenditures.

The Museum has a policy to structure its financial assets to be available as its general expenditures,
liabilities, and other obligations come due.
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HARRISONBURG CHILDREN’S MUSEUM, INC,
dba EXPLORE MORE DISCOVERY MUSEUM
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2018

NOTE C —~ LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILTY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS, continued

Financial assets:

Cash $ 694,826
Pledges receivable, net 209,777
Inventaries 13,971
Investments 201,069

Total financial assets 1,119,643

Less those unavailable for general expenditure within one year:

Contributions expected to be received after one year {142,913)
Donor-restricted assets (430,771)
inventories (13,971)

Total unavailable assets {587,655)

Financial assets available to meet cash needs for general
expenditures within one year $ 531,988

NOTE D - INVESTMENTS IN MARKETABLE SECURITIES

Investments are presented in the financial statements at fair value. Cost and fair values at December 31,
2018 are summarized as follows:

Investments are classified as follows:

Cost Fair Value
Cash and cash equivalents $ 11,127 $ 11,127
Mutual funds - fixed income: Short-term 63,072 64,330
Mutual Funds - US Equity: Large cap 115,972 123,572
The Community Foundation [nvestment Pool 2,000 2,040

$ 192,171 $ 201,069

Cost Fair Value
Without donor restrictions $ 131,674 $ 137,771
With donor restrictions 60,497 63,288

3 192,171 $ 201,069

Investment income includes interest and dividend income from savings accounts, certificates of deposits
and other cash equivalents. For the year ended December 31, 2018, investment management fees
totaled $1,008, and are reported as professional fees on the statement of functional expenses.
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HARRISONBURG CHILDREN’S MUSEUM, INC.
dba EXPLORE MORE DISCOVERY MUSEUM
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2018

NOTE E — FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

Fair Value Hierarchy

The fair value accounting standards establishes a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to
valuation techniques used to measure fair value. This hierarchy consists of three broad levels: Level 1
inputs consist of unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets and have the highest
priority, Level 2 inputs consist of observable inputs other than quoted prices for identical assets, and Level
3 inputs have the lowest priority. The Organization uses appropriate valuation techniques based on the

available inputs to measure fair value.

Following is a description of the valuation methodologies used for assets measured at fair value:

Cash and cash equivalents: Money market funds are valued at cost which approximates fair value. These
funds are considered cash equivalents and classified as Level 1 in the fair value hierarchy.

Equity securities and mutual funds: Equities and mutual funds for which a quoted market price is available
on an active market are classified as Level 1 in the fair value hierarchy.

Community Foundation Investment Pool: Investments within The Community Foundation Investment Pool
are primarily equity and mutual funds traded on active markets. However, since these assets are poaled
with other organizations and the Organization’s share in The Community Foundation’s investment pool
cannot be sold independently, the investment has been classified as a Level 2 in the fair value hierarchy.
Values for the investments are based on the market pricing of the underlying assets of the poal, prorated
for the Organization’s proportionate share of the total pool investment.

Fair values of assets and liabilities measured on a recurring basis at December 31, 2018 are as follows:

Level 1 lLevel 2 Level 3 Total
Cash and cash equivalents $ 11,127 $ - % - $ 11,127
Mutual funds - fixed income: Short-term 64,330 - - 64,330
Mutual Funds - US Equity: Large cap 123,572 - - 123,672
The Community Foundation Investment
Pool - 2,040 - 2,040
$ 199,029 % 2040 § - $ 201,069
NOTE F - PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
Property and equipment at December 31, 2018 consisted of the following:
Building (see Note J) $ 750,000
Building improvements 2,062,733
Exhibits and equipment 1,075,350
Construction in progress 16,394
L ess accumulated depreciation (988,126)
Property and equipment, net $ 2,916,351
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HARRISONBURG CHILDREN'S MUSEUM, INC.
dba EXPLORE MORE DISCOVERY MUSEUM
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2018

NOTE G — RETIREMENT PLAN
During the year ended December 31, 2018, Explore Mare sponsored a SIMPLE |RA retivement plan that is
offered to all Explore More employees. The Organization matches the employee’s contribution up to a

maximum of three percent of the employee’s compensation, Explore More contributed approximately
$6,144 in matching SIMPLE IRA contributions for the year ended December 31, 2018.

NOTE H — CONCENTRATION OF RISK
The Organization maintains substantially all its cash balances in one financial institution located in

Harrisonburg, Virginia. The balances are insured by the Federal Deposit Ihsurance Corporation up to
$250,000. At December 31, 2018 the Organization’s uninsured cash balances totaled $444,825,

NOTE I - NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS

Net assets with donor restrictions as of December 31, 2018 are available for the following purposes:

Projects specific to operations % 152,243
Capital campaign - building improvements 178,344
Capital campaign - exhibits 100,184

$ 430,771

Net assets during the year ended December 31, 2018 were released from donor restrictions by incurring
expenses satisfying the restricted purposes or by occurrence of other events specified by donors.

Purpose restrictions accomplished:

Projects specific to operations $ 17,605
Capital campaign - building improvements 36,636
Capital campaign - exhibits 34,421

$ 88662

NOTE J — CAPITAL LEASE ARRANGEMENT AND DONATED CAPITAL LEASE PAYMENTS

in February 2010, Explore More entered into a 20-year capital lease agreement with the Harrisonburg
Redevelopment and Mousing Authority (HRHA) to secure its primary business location of 150 South Main
Street, Harrisonburg, Virginia (the property). HRHA incurred $750,000 in debt to finance the purchase of
the property from a third party (the loan); final maturity of the debt occurs in April 2020.

Under the terms of the lease, Explore More has exclusive occupancy rights for 20 years as well as the
right to purchase the property at a price of $10.00 plus any unpaid principal, interest and penalty balances
due under the loan. Once the HRHA loan is paid in full, Explore More may purchase the property from
HRHA for the sum of $10.00 plus any related closing costs.

HRHA foan paymaents on the property are due bi-annually and total $67,668 per year. Under the terms of
the lease, HRHA considers the annual loan payments to be the rental amount due from Explore More
each year.
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HARRISONBURG CHILDREN’S MUSEURM, INC.
dba EXPLORE MORE DISCOVERY MUSEUM
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2018

NOTE .J — CAPITAL LEASE ARRANGEMENT AND DONATED CAPITAL LEASE PAYMENTS,
continued

In a separate support agreement, the City of Harrisonburg (the City) agreed to a non-binding moral
obligation to pay ali HRHA loan payments on Explore More’s behalf. In the event that the City cannot
make the bi-annual payments, Explore More would owe these amounts to HRHA. The City remits
payments directly to HRHA, but Explore More recognizes these payments as in-kind contribution support.
For the year ended December 31, 2018, Explore More received $67,668 of in-kind contribution support
from the City, which reduced its capital lease obligation by $59,215 and covered related interest costs of

$8,453 recognized under the lease agreement.

The following is an analysis of the leased assets included in property and equipment as of December 31,
2018:

Property under capital lease obligation $ 750,000
Less: accumulated depreciation {262,820)
Net property under capital lease obligation $ 487,180

The following is a schedule by years of future minimum payments required under the lease together with
their present value as of December 31, 2018:

Year ending
December, 31
2019 $ 87,668
2020 33,834
Total minimum lease payments 101,502

Less: amount representing interest {4.071)

Present value of minimum lease payments  $ 97 431

NOTE K —~ PLEDGES RECEIVABLE

Pledges receivable consisted of the following as of December 31, 2018:

Planned gifts $ 225,887
Less: unamartized discount at 6% (7,075)
Less: allowance for doubtful accounts (8,035)
Total promises to give, net $ 209,777

Pledges receivable are due to be collected in the following periods:

Less than one year $ 69,650
One to five years ' 156,237

$ 225,887
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Harrisonburg Children's Museum

Budget Comparison
January - December 2019

Actual Budget Over Budget
Income
Admissions 138,228.36 142,000.00 (3,771.64)
Birthday Parties 22,568.59 19,500.00 3,068.59
Clubs/Programs 48,855.82 42,500.00 6,355.82
Dividend Income 4,008.47 2,500.00 1,508.47
Facility Rental 1,850.00 1,500.00 350.00
Fleld Trips 39,137.50 32,000.00 7.137.50
Fundraising/Donations 190,759.10 195,000.00 (4,240.90)
Interest Income 189.26 0.00 189.26
Memberships 103,877.11 85,000.00 18,877.11
Museum Store 16,039.15 15,0060.00 4,039.15
Realized Gains {Losses) 4.85 0.00 4.85
Unrealized Gains (Losses) 11,913.52 0.00 11,913.52
Total Income $ 580,431.73 § 535,000.00 $ 45,431.73
Gross Profit $ 5680,431.73 $ 535,000.00 $ 45,431.73
Expenses
Birthday Party Expense 1,839.59 1.500.00 339.59
Clubs/Programs Expense 7.913.88 8,500.00 {586.12)
Credit Card Expense 6,856.20 8,000.00 (1,043.80)
Discretionary Fund 21.05 0.00 21.05
Exhibit Expense 15,718.25 30,000.00 (14,281.71)
Explorer - POS 2,5660.00 2,600.00 (40.00)
Facility 83,051.87 89,000.00 (5,948.13)
Field Trip Expense 324.71 500.00 (175.29)
Fundralsing Expense 22,240.75 30,600.00 {7,759.25)
investment Fees - TCF 1,584.13 0.00 ) 1,584.13
Mail 520.50 1,000.00 (479.50)
Marketing 13,043.71 13,500.00 (456.29}
Membership Events 400.21 500.00 {99.79)
Museum Store Expense 1,137.22 7,000.00 (5,862.78)
Office Equipment 5,140.75 3,060.00 2,140.75
Office Supplies 3,549.00 3,000.00 549.00
Payroll Expenses 4,990.85 8,000.00 {3,008.15)
Personnel 324,739.76 314,000.00 10,739.76
Professional Associations 2,982.14 2,500.00 482.14
Professional Services 11,402.75 11,500.00 (97.25}
Service Recognition (Gifts) 357.11 200.00 157.11
Volunteers 480.68 500.00 (19.32)
YAB Expense 287.55 200,00 87.55
Total Expenses $ 511,242.70 § 535,000.00 § {23,757.30)
Net Operating Income $ 69,189.03 % 0.00 % 69,189.03

Net Income $ 69,182.03 $ 0.00 % 69,189.03



. IRS e-file Signature Authorization
o 8879-EQ for an Exempt Organization

OMB No. 1545-1878

For calendar year 2018, or fiscal year beginning ,2018,andending 220
Department of the Treasury > Do not send to the IRS. Keep for your records. 2@ 1 8
Internal Revenue Service > Go to www.irs.gov/Form8879E0 for the latest information.
Name of exemp! organization Employer identification number
HARRISONBURG CHILDREN'S MUSEUM, INC 16-1683676
Name and title of officer
LISA SHULL EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Type of Return and Return Information (Whole Dollars Only)

Check the box for the return for which you are using this Form 8879-EO and enter the applicable amount, if any, from the return.
If you check the box on line ta, 2a, 3a, 4a, or 5a, below, and the armount on that line for the return being filed with this

form was blank, then leave line 1b, 2b, 3b, 4b, or 5b, whichever is applicabie, blank {(do not enter -0-}. But, if you entered

-(- on the return, then enter -0- on the applicable line below. Do not complete more than one line in Part L.

1a Form 990 check here W b Total revenue, if any (Form 990, Part Vill, column (A), line 12) . . . 1b 1,068,297
2a Form 980-EZ check here ® |:| b Total revenue,if any (Form 990-EZ,ine9). . . . . . . . . . 2b
3a Form 1120-POL check here W D b Total tax (Form 1120-POL,line22). . . . . . . .. . 3b
4a Form 890-PF check here » [:I b Tax based on investment income (Form 890-PF, Part VI, fine 5) 4b
5a Form 8868 check here » D b Balance Due (Form 8868,line3cy. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 5b

‘Part Hl Declaration and Signature Authorization of Officer

Under penalties of perjury, | declare that | am an officer of the above organization and that | have examined a copy of the
organization's 2018 electronic return and accompanying schedules and statements and to the best of my kriowledge and belief, they
are true, correct, and complete. [ further declare that the amount in Part | above is the amount shown on the copy of the
organization's electronic retun, | consert to allow my intermediate service provider, transmitter, or electronic return originator (ERO)
ta send the organization's return to the IRS and to receive from the IRS (a) an acknowledgement of receipt or reason for rejection of
the transmission, {b) the reason for any delay in processing the return or refund, and {c) the date of any refund. If applicable, |
authorize the U.S. Treasury and its designated Financial Agent to initiate an electronic funds withdrawat (direct debit) entry to the
financial institution account indicated in the tax preparation software for payment of the organization's federal taxes owad on this
return, and the financial institution to debit the entry to this account. To revoke a payment, | must contact the 1.8, Treasury Financial
Agent at 1-888-353-4537 no fater than 2 business days prior to the payment (settlement) date. | also authorize the financial institutions
involved ins the processing of the electronic payment of taxes to receive canfidential information necessary to answer inquiries and
resolve issues related to the payment. | have selected a personal identification number (PIN) as my signature for the organization's
electronic return and, if applicable, the organization's consent to electronic funds withdrawal.

Officer's PIN: check one box only
 authorize Cardinal Financial & Tax, Lid. to enter my PIN 16168 as my signature

ERO firm name Enter five numbers, hut
do not enter alf zeros

on the organization's tax year 2018 electronically filed return. If | have indicated within this return that a copy of the return
is being filed with a state agency(ies) regulating charities as part of the IRS Fed/State program, 1 also authorize the
aforementioned ERQ to enter my PIN on the return's disclosure consent screan.

D As an officer of the organization, 1 will enter my PIN as my signature on the organization's tax year 2018 electronically
filad return. If | have indicated within this return that a copy of the return is being filed with a state agency(jes) regulating
charities as part of the IRS Fed/State program, | will enter my PIN on the retum's disclosure consent screen.

Officer's signature Dats b 11/13/2019

Part lil Certification and Authentication

ERO's EFIN/PIN, Enter your six-digit electronic filing identification

number (EFEN) followed by your five-digit self-selected PIN. _ 54906423923

do not enter all zeros

[ certify that the above numeric enfry is my PIN, which is my signature on the 2018 electronically filed return for the organization
indicated above. | confirm that | am submitting this return in accordance with the requirements of Pub. 4163, Modernized e-File
{MeF) Information for Authorized IRS e-file Providers for Business Returns.

ERO's signature  ®  Sheila A Fair Date & 11/13/2019

ERO Must Retain This Form—S8ee Instructions
Do Not Submit This Form to the IRS Unless Reguested To Do So

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see back of form, Form 8879-EQ (018

HTA




_ IRS e-file Signature Authorization s 1878
o 8879-EQ for an Exempt Organization OME Mo, 1545187

For calendar year 2018, or fiscal year beginning _____ ,2018,andending (20
Department of the Treasury P Do not send to the IRS. Keep for your records. 2@1 8
Internal Revenue Service P Go to www.irs.gov/Form8879EQ for the latest informatfon.
Employer identification number

16-1683676

Name of exempt orgarézation
HARRISONBURG CHILDREN'S MUSEUM, INC

Name and title of officer

LISA SHULL

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Type of Return and Return Information (Whole Dollars Only)

Check the box far the raturn for which you are using this Form 8879-EO and enter the applicable amount, if any, from the return.
If you check the box on line 1a, 2a, 3a, 4a, or 5a, below, and the amount on that line for the return being filed with this

form was blank, then leave line 1b, 2b, 3b, 4b, or 5b, whichever is applicable, blank {do nof enter -0-). But, if you entered

-0~ on the return, then enter -0 on the applicable line betow. Po not complete more than one line in Part 1.

1a Form 990 check here ¥ [:I b Total revenue, if any (Form 990, Part VIli, column (A), line 12) . . . 1b
2a Form 990-EZ check here B D b Total revenue,if any (Form 980-EZ, line 9 . . 2b
3a Form 1120-POL check here # D b Total tax (Form 1120-POL, line22). . . . . . . .. .. . 3b
4a Form 990-PF check here b |:| b Tax based an investment income (Form 890-PF, Part VI fine 5) 4b
Ba Form 8868 check here b b Balance Due (Form 8868,line3¢}. . . . . . . . . .. . . .. 5b 0

1 Declaration and Signature Authorization of Officer

Under penalties of perjury, | declare that | am an officer of the above organization and that | have examined a copy of the
organization’s 2018 electronic return and accompanying schedules and statements and {o the best of my knowledge and balief, thay
are true, correct, and complete. | further declare that the amount in Part | above is the amount shown on the copy of the
organization's electronic return. | consent to allow my intermediate service provider, transmitter, or electronic return originator (ERO)
to send the organization's retur {o the IRS and to recaive from the IRS (a) an acknowledgement of receipt or reason for rejection of
the transmission, {b) the reason for any delay in processing the return or refund, and (c) the date of any refund. If applicable, |
autharize the U.S, Treasury and its designated Financlal Agent to initiate an electronic funds withdrawal {direct debit) enfry to the
financial mstitution account indicated in the tax preparation software for payment of the organization's federat taxes owed on this
raturn, and the financial institution to debit the entry to this account. To revoke a payment, | must contact the U.S. Treasury Financial
Agent at 1-888-353-4537 no later than 2 business days prior to the payment {settlement) date. I also authorize the financial institutions
involved in the processing of the electronie payment of taxes to receive confidential information necessary to answer inquiries and
resolve issues related to the payment. | have selected a personal identification number (PIN} as my signature for the organization's
electronic return and, if applicable, the organization's consent to electronic funds withdrawal.

Officer's PIN: check one box only
| authorize Cardinal Financial & Tax, Lid. to enter my PIN 16168 J as my signature

ERO firm name Enter five numbers, but
do not enter alf zeros

on the organization's tax year 2018 electronically filed retum. If | have indicated within this return that a copy of the return
is being filed with a state agency(ies) regulating charities as part of the IRS Fed/State program, | also authorize the
aforementioned ERO to enter my PIN on the retumn's disclosure consent screen.

D As an officer of the organization, | will enter my PIN as my signature on the organization's tax year 2018 electronically
fited return. i | have indicated within this return that a copy of the return is being filed with a state agency(ies) reguiating
charities as part of the IRS Fed/State program, [ will enter my PIN on the return’s disclosure consent screen,

Officer's signature_» Lisow Shall Date 11/13/2019
Part HI Certification and Authentication

ERO's EFIN/PIN, Enter your six-digit electronic filing identification

number (EFIN} followed by your five-digit self-selected PIN. 54906423923

do not enter all zeros

| certify that the above numeric entry is my PIN, which is my signature on the 2018 electronically filed return for the organization
indicated above. | confirm that | am submitting this return in accardance with the requirements of Pub. 4163, Modernized e-Filg

{MeF) Information for Authorized IRS e-file Providers for Business Returns.

ERO's signature  ®»  Sheila A Fair Date ™

. ERO Must Retain This Form—See Instructions
Do Not Submit This Form to the IRS Unless Reguested To Do So

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see back of form.
HTA

Form 8879-EO (2018}



| OMB No. 1545-0047

rorm 990 Return of Organization Exempt From Income Tax

Under section 561(c}, 527, or 4847(a){1) of the Internal Revenue Code (except private foundations)
» Do not enter social security numbers on this form as it may be made public.

EBrapartment of the T
el Teevaniio Sores » Go to www.irs.gov/Form890 for instructions and the latest information.

Internal Revenue Service

A _Forthe 2018 calendar year, or tax year beginning , and endin
B Check if applicable: € Name of organization HARRISONBURG CHILDREN'S MUSEUM, INC D Employer identification number
Address change Doing business s Explore Mere Discovery Museum
D Name chan Number and street {or P.O. box if mall is not delivered to street address) Raomisuite 16-16836756
I:l g€ P O BOX 957 E Telephone number
Initial return City or town State ZIP code
D Final retum/terminaled HARRISONBURG VA 22803 PR
Foreign country name Fareign province/state/county Foreign postal code
E:I Amended return G Gross receipts $ 1,101,276
D Application pending | F Name and address of principal officer: H(a) Is this a group return for subordinales? DY&S No
LISA SHULL, P O BOX 957, HARRISONBURG, VA 22803 H(b) Are all suhordinates included? [ Jves[ Jno
[ Tax-exempt status: 501(0)(3)’3 s01(e)  { } A (insert no.) L__I 4947(a)(1) or |:| 527 If "No," altach a list. (see instructions}
J Website: » www.iexploremore.com H{c} Group exemplion number »
K Form of arganization: Corporation [:] Trust D Association \:I Gther b | L Year of farmation: 203 M State of legal domicile: WA
_ Partl Summary
1 Briefly describe the organization's mission or most significant activities: EXPLORE MORE DISCOVERY MUSEUM .
8 PROMOTES HANDS-ON LEARNING AGTIVITIES FOR YOUNG MINDS THROUGH MUSEUM EXHIBITS, PROGRAMMING, ____
g SCHOOL SPONSORED FIELD TRIPSANDSPECIALEVENTS " "
% 2 Check this box >[| if the organization discontinued its operations or disposed of more than 25% of its net assets.
O | 3 Number of voting members of the governing body (Part Vl, lineta). . . . . . . . . . . .. 3 16
ﬁ 4 Number of independent voting members of the goveming body (Part Vi, line 1b). . . . . . . 4 16
§ 5 Total number of individuals employed in calendar year 2018 (Part V, line2a). . . . . . . . . 5 22
% 8  Tolal number of volunteers (estimate if necessary) . P e e 6 300
< | 7a Total unrelated business revenue from Part Vili, column (C) line 12 e e e e 7a 0
b Net unrelated business taxable income from Form 990-T, line38. . . . . . . . . . . . . 7h 0
Prior Year Current Year
o | 8 Contributions and grants (PartVill, lineth). . . . . . . . . . . . . .. 476,437 694,538
£ | 9 Program service revenus (Part VIlL, line 2g) . . e 288,968 348,105
& |10 Investment income (Part VIH, column (A), lines 3 4 and Td) R .. 4,864 2,594
® 111 Other revenue {Part ViHl, column {A}, lines 5, 84, 8¢, 9¢, 10c, and ‘E1e) . 30,229 23,080
12 Total revenue—add fines 8 through 11 (must equal Part Vill, column (A}, line 12). . 800,498 1,068,297
13 Grants and similar amounts paid (Part IX, column (A}, fines 1-3) . . . . . . 0 0
14 Bengfits paid to or for members (Part IX, column {(A), line 4) . . 0 0
w {15  Salaries, other compensation, employee benefits (Part X, column (A) l:nes 5—10) . 269,407 290,478
2 {16a Professional fundraising fees {(Part IX, column (A), line11e). . . . . . . . 0 0
:é’. b Total fundraising expenses (Part IX, column (D), line 25) »
W 117  Other expenses (Part IX, column {A}, lines 11a—11d, 11f—24e}. . . . . 309,699 417,511
18  Total expenses. Add lines 13—17 {must equal Part EX, column (A}, line 25) . 579,106 707,989
19  Revenue less expenses. Subfract line 18 fromline12. . . . . . . . . . . 221,392 360,308
8 § Beginning of Current Year End of Year
%.ﬁ 20 Total assels {Patt X, line 16} . e e e e e e e 3,550,780 4,035,994
%ﬂ 21 Totalliabilities {Part X, line 26) . e e 193,665 112,358
2"5’ 22  Net assets or fund balances. Subtraot Elne 21 from Ime 20 e e . 3,357,125 3,923,636

Signature Block
Under penalties of perjury, | declare that | have examined this return, inciuding accompanying schedules and statements, and to the best of my knowledge
and belief, it is true, correct, and complete. Declaration of preparer (other than officer) is based on aii information of which preparer has any knowledge.

Sign Lizow Shalls [ 11/13/2019
Here Signature of officer Date
’ LISA SHULL EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
Type er print name and litle

Print/Type preparer’s name Preparer's signature Date PTIN
Paid Check [X] if
Preparer Sheila A Fair Sheila A Fair 14/13/2019| self-employed |P01251868
Use Only Firm's name __ ® Cardinal Financial & Tax, Lid. Firm's EiN ® 27-4005840

Firm's address P 117 S Lewis Street, Suite 110, Stauntor, VA 24401 Phone no. (D40} 248-1411
May the IRS discuss this return with the preparer shown above? (see instruetions). . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. Yes [:! No
For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the separate instructions. Form 990 (2018)

HTA




Form 90 (2018} HARRISONBURG CHILDREN'S MUSEUM, INC 16-1683676

Page 2

gl Statement of Program Service Accomplishments D

Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part [If .

Briefly describe the organization's mission:
EXPLORE MORE DISCOVERY MUSEUM ENGAGES YOUNG MINDS THROUGH INTERACTIVE, MULTI-SENSORY

Did the organization undertake any significant program services during the year which were not listed on
the prior Form 990 or 990-E27 . . . . . . . . . . [] Yes
If "Yes,” describe these new services on Schedule O,

Did the organization cease conducting, or make significant changes in how it conducts, any program

services? . DYesNo
If "Yes," describe these changes on Schedule O.

Dascribe the organization's program service accomplishments for each of its three largest program services, as measured by
expensas. Section 501(c){3} and 501(c)(4) organizations are required to report the amount of grants and allocations to others,

the total expenses, and revenue, if any, for each program service reported.

4a

(Cade: } (Expenses § 523,981 including grants of § )(Revenueg )

4b

{Code: } (Expenses § including grants of $ Y{Revenue$ )

4c

{Gode: }{Expenses § 67,420 including grants of $ y(Revenue )

4d

Other pragram services. (Describe in Schedule O.)
(Expenses $ 0 including grants of § 0 }(Revenue $ 0)

L1

Total program service expenses »> 591,401

Form 990 (2018)




Form 990 (2018) HARRISONBURG CHILDREN'S MUSEUM, INC 16-1683676 Pags 3

10

11

12a

13
14a

158

16

17

18

19

20a

21

Checklist of Required Schedules

ts the arganization described in section 501{(c){(3) or 4947(a)(1) (other than a private foundation)? If "Yes,”
completfe Schedie A .

Is the organization required to complete Schedu!e B, Schedule of Conmbutors (see ;nstructlons)'?

Did the organization engage in direct or indirect politicat campaign activities on behalf of or in opposrtron fo
candidates for public office? If “Yes," complete Schedule C, Part 1.

Section 501(c)}{3) organizations. Did the organization engage in lobbying actwltres or have a sectlon 501 (h)
election in effect during the tax year? If "Yes," complete Schedule C, Part I! . .

Is the organization a section 501{c){4), 501(c)}(5), or 501{c)(6) organization that receives membershlp dues
assessments, or similar amounts as defined in Ravenue Procedure 98-197 If "Yes,” complets Schedule C, Part H
Did the organization maintain any donor advised funds or any similar funds or accounts for which donors
have the right to provide advice on the distribution or investment of amounts in such funds or accounts? /f
"Yes," complete Schedule D, Parti . . . . . . . L e e
Did the organization receive or hold a conservation easement, mciudmg easements to preserve open space,
the environment, historic land areas, or historic structures? If "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part i .

Did the organization maintain collections of works of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets? If "Yes,”
complete Schedule D, Part il . .

Did the organization repart an amount in Part X Ilne 21 for ascrow or custod:al account hablilty, serve as a
custadian for amaunts not listed in Part X; or provide credit counseling, debt management, credit repair, or debt
negotiation services? if “Yes," complete Schedule D, Part IV .

Did the organization, directly or through a related organization, hold assets in temporanly restrlcted
endowments, permanent endowments, or quasi-endowments? If "Yes,” complete Schedule D, Part V.,

If the organization's answer to any of the following questions is *Yes," then complete Schedule D, Parts VI,
VIE VIIE 1X, or X as applicable.

Did the organization report an amount for land, buildings, and equipment in Part X, line 107 /f "Yes," complete
Schedule D, Part VI. .

Did the organization report an amount for |nvestments—other securities in Part X ime 12 that is 5% or mare
of its total assels reported in Part X, line 187 /f "Yas,” complete Schedule D, Part Vil. . .
Did the organization report an amourtt for investments—program related in Part X, line 13 that is 5% or more
of its total assets reported in Part X, line 167 Jf "Yes,” complete Schedule D, Part Viif. . .
Did the organization report an amount for other assets in Part X, line 15 that is 5% or more of its totaE assets
reported in Part X, line 167 If "Yes,"” complete Schedule D, Part IX. .

Did the arganization report an amount for other lfabilities in Part X, line 2567 If "Yes " complete Schedule D PartX .

Did the organization's separate or consolidated financial statements for the tax year include a footnote that addresses
the organization's liability for uncertain tax positions under FIN 48 (ASC 740)? If "Yes,” complefe Schedule D, Part X, .
Did the organization obtain separate, independent audited financial statements for the tax year? If "Yes,” complete
Schedule D, Parts X1 and XII. .

Was the organization included in consoirdated |ndependent audrted fmanclal statements for the tax year'> if "‘r’es
and if the organization answered "No™ fo line 12a, then completing Schedule D, Parts Xi and Xil is optional .

Is the organization a school described in section 170(b)(1)(A}ii)? If "Yes,"” complete Schedule E .

Did the organization maintain an office, employees, or agents outside of the United States? . ;

Did the organization have aggregate revenues or expenses of more than $10,000 from grantmaking,
fundraising, business, investment, and program service activities outside the United States, or aggregate
foreign investments valued at $100,000 or more? If "Yes," complefe Schedule F, Parts  and IV. .
Did the arganization report on Part IX, column (A), line 3, more than $5,000 of grants or other assistance to or
for any foreign organization? If "Yes," complete Schedule F, Parts If and IV, .

Did the organization report on Part IX, column (A), line 3, more than $5,000 of aggregate grants or other
assistance to or for foreign individuais? If "Yes,” complale Schedule F, Parts Il and IV, .

Did the organization report a total of more than $15,000 of expenses for professional fundraising services

an Part X, column (A), lines 6 and 11e? If *Yes," complele Schedule G, Part | (see instructions),

Did the organization report more than $15,000 total of fundraising event gross income and contributions on
Part VIli, lines 1c and 8a? If "Yes," complete Schedule G, Part Il , .
Did the organization report more than $15,000 of gross income from gaming actl\ntles an Part ViII hne Qa?

If "Yes," complete Schedule G, Part ili | ;

Did the organization operate one or more hospital fac;hnes’? If "Yes comp!et‘e Schedu!e H. .

If "Yes" to line 20a, did the organization attach a copy of its audited financfal statements to this return? .

Did the organization report more than $5,000 of grants or other assistance to any domestic organization or
domastic government on Part IX, column (A), line 1? If "Yes," complete Schedule I, Parts F'and If .

"

Yes | No
1|1 X
2 | X
3 X
4 X
5 X
6 X
7 X
8 X
9 X

1ta| X

11h X
11¢ X
11d| X

Me| X

114f X
12a X
12b X
13 X
14a X
14b X
15 X
16 X
17 | X

18 | X

19 X
20a X
20b

21 X

Form 990 2018)
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Form 990 (2018) HARRISONBURG CHILDREN'S MUSEUM, INC

22

23

24a

26

27

28

29
30

31
32

33

34

35a

36

37

38

Checklist of Required Schedules (confinued)

Did the organization report more than $5,000 of grants or other assistance to or for domestic individuals on
Part [X, column (A), line 27 If "Yes," complete Schedule I, Parts Fand Il . .

Did the organization answer "Yes" to Part VI, Section A, line 3, 4, or 5 about compensatlon of the
organizafion's cuirent and former officers, directors, trustees, key employees, and highest compensated
employees? If "Yes," complete Schedule J. ..

Did the organization have a tax-exempt bond issue with an outstandlng prrncrpal amount of more than
$100,000 as of the last day of the year, that was issued after December 31, 20027 If "Yes,” answer lines

24b through 24d and complete Schedule K. If "No," go to line 25a .

Did the organization invest any proceeds of tax-exempt bonds beyond a temporary penod exceptlon‘?

Did the arganization maintain an escrow account other than a refunding escrow at any time during the year

to defease any tax-exempt bonds? .

Did the organization act as an "on behalf of" issuer for bonds outstandlng at any tlme durlng the year‘7
Section 501(c}{(3), 501(c){4), and 501(c)(29) organizations. Did the organization engage in an excess benefat
transaction with a disqualified person during the year? If "Yes," complete Schedule L, Part 1. .
Is the organization aware that it engaged in an excess benefit transaction with a disqualified person in a

prior year, and that the transaction has not been reported on any of the organization's prior Forms 890 or
990-EZ7? If “Yes," complefe Schedule L, Part !.

Did the organization report any amount on Part X, line 5, 6, or 22 for recewables from or payables to any
current or former officers, directors, trustees, key employees, highest compensated employees, or
disqualified persons? If "Yes," complefe Schedule L, Part I} .

Did the organization provide a grant ar other assistance to an officer, d:rector trustee key employee
substantial contributor or employee thereof, a grant selection committee member, or to a 35% controfled
entity or family member of any of these persons? If "Yes,” complete Schedule L., Part Iif .

Was the organization a party to a business transaction with one of the following parties (see Schedule L

Part IV instructions for applicable filing thresholds, conditions, and exceptions):

A current or former officer, director, trustee, or key employee? If "Yes, " complete Schedule L, Part IV .

A family member of a current or former officer, director, trustee, or key employee?!f "Yes," complete
Schedule L, Part IV . .

An entity of which a current or former oﬂ" jcer, dlrector trustee or key employee (or a famrly member thereof)
was an officer, director, trustee, or dirsct or indirect owner? If "Yes," complete Schedule L, Part IV .

Did the organization receive more than $25,000 in non-cash contributions? ff "Yes," complete Schedule M.
Did the organization receive contributions of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets, or qualified
conservation contributions? If "Yes," complete Schedule M .

Did the organization liquidate, terminate, or dissolve and cease operatlons’P If "Yes " complete Schedu]e N PerH
Did the organization sell, exchange, dispose of, or fransfer more than 25% of its net assets?

If "Yes,” complete Schedule N, Part il .

Did the organization own 100% of an entity dlsregarded as separate from the orgenlzatlon under Regu[anons
sections 301.7701-2 and 301.7701-3? If "Yes, " complete Schedule R, Part 1.

Was the organization related to any tax-exempt or taxable enttty’-’ If "Yes," compleie Scheduie R Part H

il or IV, and Part V, line 1.

Did the organization have a controlled ent:ty w;thln the meaning of sect:on 512(b)(1 3)'?

If “Yes" to line 35a, did the organization receive any payment from or engage in any fransaction with a controIEed
entity within the meaning of section 512{b}{13)? If "Yes,” complete Schedule R, Part V, line 2 .

Section 501{c)(3) organizations. Did the organization make any transfers to an exempt non-charitable relatect
organization? If "Yes," complefe Schedule R, Part V, line 2. ..

Did the organization conduct more than 5% of ifs activities through an entlty that is not a related orgamzetzon
and that is treated as a partnership for federal income tax purposes? If "Yes," complefe Schedule R, Part V1.

Did the organization complete Schedule O and provide explanations in Schedule O for Part Vi, lines 11b and
187 Note. All Form 990 filers are required fo complete Schedule Q. .

Yes | No
22 X
23 X
24a X
24b
24¢
24d
25a X
25b X
26 X

28a| X
28b| X
28c{ X
29 X
30 X
3 X
32 X
33 X
34 X
35a X
35b
- 36 X
h 37 X
38 | X

Statements Regarding Other IRS Filings and Tax Compllance

Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part V.

[~2

Enter the number reported in Box 3 of Form 1098. Enter -0-if not applicable . . . . . . . . . 1a

Enter the number of Forms W-2G included in jine 1a. Enter -0~ if not applicable . . . . . 1hb
Did the organization comply with backup withholding rules for reportable payments to vendors anci reportable
gaming (gambling) winnings to prize winners? . .

e | X

Form 990 (2018)




Form: 990 (2018) HARRISONBURG CHILDREN'S MUSEUM, INC 16-1683676 Page 5

2a

3a

4a

ba

6a

12a

13

14a

15

16

Statements Regarding Other IRS Filings and Tax Compliance (continued)

Enter the number of employees reported on Form W-3, Transmittal of Wage and Tax
Statements, filed for the calendar year ending with or within the year covered by this return . . 2a

If at least one Is reported on line 2a, did the organization file alt required federal employment tax returns? .

Note. If the sum of lines 1a and 2a is greater than 250, you may be required to e-file. (see instructions)

Did the organization have unrelated business gross income of $1,000 or more during the vear? . .

if "Yes," has it filed a Form 980-T for this year? If "Ne" {o line 3b, provide an explanation in Schedule O .

At any time during the calendar year, did the organization have an interest in, or a signature or other authority over,
a financial account in a foreign country {such as a bank account, securiies account, or other financial account)?

If "Yes,” enter the name of the foreign country: >
See instructions for filing requirements for FinCEN Form 114, Report of Foteign Bank and Financial Accounts (FBAR).
Was the organization a party to a prohibited tax shelter transaction at any time during the tax year? .

Did any taxable party notify the organization that it was or is a parly to a prohibited tax shelter transaction? .

If "Yes" to line ba or 5b, did the organization file Form 8886-T7 . .

Does the organization have annual gross receipts that are normally greater than $100 000 and dld the
organization solicit any contributions that were not tax deductible as charitable contributions?

If "Yes," did the organization include with every solicitation an express statement that such contnbutlons or
gifts were nof tax deductible? .

Organizations that may receive deductlbie contributlons under section 170(c)

Did the organization receive a payment in excess of $75 made partly as a contribution and partly for goods
and services provided to the payor? .

If "Yes," did the organization notify the donor of !he Value of the goods or services provrded’>

Did the organization sell, exchange, or otherwise dispose of tangible personal property for which it was
required to file Form 82827 , . e e e e e e e e

If "Yes," indicate the number of Forms 8282 ﬂed durlng the vear. . . . . . . .. ... | 7d ]

Did the organization receive any funds, directly or indirectly, to pay premiums on a perscnal benefit contract?
Did the organization, during the year, pay premiums, directly or indirectly, on a personal benefit contract? .
If the organization received a contribution of qualified intellectuat property, did the organization file Form 8899 as required? .

If the organization received a contribution of cars, hoats, airplanes, or other vehicles, did the organization file a Form 1098-C? .

Sponsoring organizations maintaining donor advised funds. Bid a donor advised fund maintained by the
sponsoring organization have excess business holdings at any time during the year? .

Sponsoring organizations maintaining donor advised funds.

Did the sponsoring organization make any taxable distributions under section 49667 .

Did the sponsoring organization make a distribution to a donor, donor advisor, or related person'?

Section 501{c}{T)} organizations. Enter:

Initiation fees and capital contributions included on Part VIl khe 12, . . . . .. . . |10a
Gross receipls, included on Form 990, Part VI, line 12, for public use of club facmtles . 10b
Section 501(c)(12) organizations. Enter:

Gross income from members or shareholders. . . . Ce e 11a
Gross income from other sources (Do not net amounts due or pa|d to other sources

against amounts due or received fromthem.). . . . . . . 11b
Section 4947(a){1) non-exempt charitable trusts. Is the organizat:on f hng Form 990 in I:eu of Form 10417 .
If "Yes," enter the amount of tax-exempt interest received or accrued during the year . . . . . ] 12b|

Section 501(c)(29) qualified nonprofit health insurance issuers.

Is the organization licensed to issue quatified health plans in more than one state? .

Note. See the instructions for additional information the organization must report on Schedule O

Enter the amount of reserves the organization is required to maintain by the states in which

the organization is licensed o issue qualified healthptans. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . [13b

Enter the amount of reservesonhand . . . . . . . 13c¢

Did the organization receive any payments for indoor tannzng services durlng the tax year? .
If *Yes," has it filed a Form 720 to report these payments? If “No," provide an explanation in Schedule O .

s the organization subject to the section 4960 tax on payment(s) of more than $1,000,000 in remuneration or
excess parachute payment(s) during the year .

If “Yes," see instructions and file Form 4720, Schedule N

ls the organization an educational institution subject to the section 4968 excise tax on net investment income? .
[f *Yes," complete Farm 4720, Schedule O.

14a X
14h

Form 990 (2018)




Form S0 (2018) HARRISONBURG CHILDREN'S MUSEUM, INC 16-1683676 page 6
BVE  Governarce, Management, and Disclosure For each 'Yes' response fo fines 2 through 7b below, and for a "No"

response fo fine 8a, 8b, or 10b below, describe the circumstances, processes, or changes in Schedule O. See instructions.

Check if Schedule O contains a response ornote to anylineinthisPartVvi. . . . . . . . . . . . .

Section A. Governing Body and Management

Yes | No

1a Enter the number of voting members of the governing body at the end of the tax year . . . . 1a
if there are material differences in voting rights among members of the governing body, or
if the governing body delegated broad authority to an executive committee or similar
committee, explain in Schedule O.

b Enter the humber of voting memhbers included in line 1a, above, who are independent. . . . 1b

2 Did any officer, director, trustee, or key employes have a family relationship ar a business relationship with
any other officer, director, trustee, or key employee? .

3 Did the organization delegate control over management duties customan[y performed by ar under the dlrect

supervision of officers, directors, or frustees, or key employees to a management company or other person? . 3 X

4  Did the organization make any significant changes to its governing decuments since the prior Form 990 was filed? . . . . . 4 X

5  Did the organization become aware during the year of a significant diversion of the organization's assets? . . 5 X

6 Did the organization have members or stockholders? . 6 X
7a Did the organization have members, stockholders, or other persons who had the power to elect or appount

Ta X

one or more members of the governing body? .
b Are any governance decisions of the organization reserved to (or sub]ect to approvaE by) members
stockholders, or persons other than the governing body? .
8 Did the organization contemporaneously document the meetings held ar wntten aot:ons undertaken durmg
the year by the following:
a The governing body? .

b Each committee with authority to act on behalf of ihe governing body? e Coe . 8b | X
9 s there any officer, director, trustee, or key employee listed in Part Vil, Section A, who cannot be reached
at the organization's mailing address? If "Yes," provide the names and addresses in Schedule 0. . . . 9 X
Section B. Policies (This Section B requests information about policies not required by the Intema! Revenue Code.
Yas | No
10a Did the organizatlon have local chapters, branches, or affiliates? . 10a X
b If"Yes,” did the organization have written policies and procedures governing the activ:ttes of such chapters
affiliates, and branches to ensure their operations are consistent with the organization's exempt purposes?. . . . . |10b
11a Has the organization provided a complete copy of this Form 990 to all members of its governing body before filing the form? . 11aj X
b Bescribe in Schedule O the process, if any, used by the organization to review this Form 890. sl

12a Did the organization have a written conflict of interest policy? /f "No,"go to line 13. . . . . 12ai X
b Were officers, directors, or trustees, and key employees required fo disclose annually interests that could gwe rise to conﬁlcts? 12b| X
¢ Did the organization regutarly and consistently monitor and enfarce compiiance with the policy? /f "Yes,”

describe in Schedule O how thiswas done . . . . e e e e e e e e e e e 12¢| X

13 Did the organization have a written whistleblower pohoy’?

14 Did the organization have a written document retention and destruotron pohcy’? .

15 Did the proeass for determining compensation of the following persons include a review and approval by

independent persons, comparability data, and contemporaneous substantiation of the deliberation and decision?
a The orgenization's CEO, Executive Director, or top managementofiicial. . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. ... 153} X
b Other officers or key employees of the organization . 15b X
If "Yes" to line 15a or 15b, describe the process in Schedule 0 (see lnstructtons) e ’
16a Did the organization invest in, contribute assets fo, or participate in a joint venture or similar arrangement
with a taxable entity during the year? . ..
b If"Yes," did the organization follow a written pohcy or procedure requiring the orgamzatlon o eva[uate lts
participation in joint ventura arrangements under applicable federal tax law, and take steps to safeguard
the organization's exempt status with respect to such arrangemenis? .
Section C. Disclosure
17  List the states with which a copy of this Form 990 is required to be filed L
18  Section 6104 requires an organization to make its Forms 1023 (1024 ar 1024-A if applicable), 990, and 980-T {Section 501(c}
{3)s only) available for publi¢ inspection, Indicate how you made these avaitable. Checl all that apply.
E:)i Own wehsite Another's website . Upon request D Other (explain in Schedule O}
18  Describe in Schedule O whether (and if so, how) the organization made its governing documents, conflict of interest policy, and
financial statements available to the public during the tax year,
20  State the name, address, and telephone number of the person who possesses the organization's books and records: >
CAROLINE SHULL 540-442-8900

P O BOX 957, HARRISONBURG, VA 22801

16a X

Form 990 (2618)



Form 850 (2018) HARRISONBURG GHILDREN'S MUSEUM, INC 16-1683676 Page 7
FNUUE  Compensation of Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, Highest Compensated
Employees, and Independent Contractors
Check if Schedule O contains a response or hote to any line in this Part Vi . e e [:]
Section A.  Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest Compensated Employees
1a Complete this table for all persons raquired to be listed. Report compensation for the calendar year ending with or within the
organization's tax year.
o List all of the organization's current officers, directors, trustees (whether individuals or organizations), regardiess of amaunt
of compensation. Enter -0- in columns (D), (E), and (F) if no compensation was paid.
® List all of the organization's current key employees, if any, See instructions for definition of "key employee.”
o List the organization's five current highest compensated employees (other than an officer, director, trustee, or key employee)
who recaived reportable compensation (Box 5 of Form W-2 and/or Box 7 of Form 1099-MISC) of mare than $100,000 from the
organization and any related organizations.
& List ali of the organization's formar officers, key employees, and highest compensated employees who received more than
$100,000 of reportable compensation from the organization and any related organizations,
e List all of the arganization's former directors or trustees that received, in the capacity as a former diractor or trustee of the
organization, more than $10,000 of reportable compensation from the organization and any related organizations,
List persons in the following order: individual trustees or directors; institutional trustees; officers; key employees; highest
compensated employees; and former such persons.

Check this box if neither the organization nor any related organization compensated any cutrent officer, director, or trustee.

€}
Paosition
(A} (B} {do not check more than one {D) (E) (F)
Name and Title Average box, unless person is both an Reporiable Reportable Estimaied
hours per officer and a directorftrustes) compensation compensatian amount of
week {listany |o 5|3 || =sle (D from from related athar
hauss for o 2222 =X % the organizations compensation
related A 8; e g organization {W-2/1099-MISC) fram the
organizations |8 G| S 3 ¢ o (W-2/1099-MISC) organization
below dotted T gD g E and related
line) &= g B organizations
[ 177} =
o g @
" g
D ANDEBANKS Lo 100
PRESIDENT, BOARD MEMBER 0.00i] X X
.{2) MATTVONSCHUCH | _......100
V PRESIDENT, BOARD MEMBER 0.00] X X
_{3)_MEGANARGENBRIGHT | 100
TREASURER, BOARD MBR 0.00] X X
_(4) KRISTINGARDNER ___ [ 100
SECRETARY, BOARD MEMBER 0.00] X X
(5} _MARTHAGRAHAM | 100
BOARD MBR 0.00] X
(6} EUZABETHKISTLER | 1080
BOARD MBR 0.00] X
A7) GLORIADIENER _ f 100
BOARD MBR 0.00] X
_(8) JMHENDERSON | 100
BOARD MBR 0.00] X
_(8)__ANGIEGOCHENOUR | 100
BOARD MBR 0.00f X
{10) BRIANKOERNER | 100
BOARD MBR 0.00] X
AN KYLELAVER .. 100
BOARD MBER 0.001 X
{12) _MARSHALLPRICE | 100
BOARD MBR 0.00] X
(13) KIRSTENMOORE | .......100
BOARD MBR 0.00] X
(4 _KATHYWHITTEN | ...100
BOARD MEMBER 0.00] X

Form 990 {2018}




HARRISONBURG CHILDREN'S MUSEUM, INC

16-1683676 Page 8

Section A, Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest Compensated Employees {cantinued)

3 Did the organization fist any former officer, director, or trustee, key employee, or highest compensated
employee on line 1a? if *Yes," complete Schedule J for such individual .

4 For any individual listed on line 1a, is the sum of reportable compensation and other compensation from
the organization and related arganizations greater than $150,0007 If "Yes,” complete Schedule J for such

individual .

5  Did any person listed on line 1a receive or accrue compensation from any unrelated organization or individual

for services rendered to the organization? If "Yes,"” complete Schedule J for such person .

{C
Position
(Y] {B) {do not check mars than ane {D} (E} {F)
Name and fitle Average boy, unless person is both an Reportable Reportable Estimated
hours per officer and a directorftrustee) compaensation compensaticn amount of
week (istany {o sl 5|0 xle = x from from related other
heurs for a2lalz2 2a g the organizations compensation
related 3a|E 8 gle @z organizaticn (W-2/1{099-MESC) from the
organizatons |& B] 9 gls g (W-211099-MISC) organization
below dotted |~ 5| £ Z|1" 5 and related
line) ] 8 2 organizations
(] [ =1
@ g g.‘
8
{18) JAYWEBB .. 100
BOARD MEMBER 0.00] X
{16)_LSASHULL 50.00
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR 0.00 XX
4 U IS
8 e
A e
20 e
B N A
23 U U
A2 e
& U S
) N S
1 Subotal ., . . . . . . . . .00 0o . > 0 0 4]
¢ Total from continuation sheets to Part Vi, Section A.. . > 0 0 0
d Total {add lines 1b and 1c). P . 0 0 0
2 Total number of individuals {including but not limited fo those listed above) who received more than $100,000 of
reportable compensation from the organization » Q
Yes| No

Section B: Independent Contractors

1 Complete this table for your five highest compensated independent contractars that received more than $100,000 of
compensation from the organization. Report compensation for the calendar year ending with or within the organization's tax

year.

{A)

Name and business address

- ®

Description of services

{C)

Compensation

Jlolo|o|ele

2 Total number of independent contractors (including but not limited to those listed above) who received
more than $100,000 of compensation from the arganization

» 0

Form 990 (z018)



HARRISONBURG CHILDREN'S MUSEUM, INC 16-1683676 Page 9
Part = Statement of Revenue

Check if Schedule O contains a response ornote to any lineinthisPartVIR.. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. I:]
A} (8} (G} {D}

Total revenue Related or Unrslated Ravenue
exempt business excluded from

function revenue tax under sections
revenuea 512514

Federated campaigns .
Membership dues .
Fundraising events .
Related organizations .
Government grants (contribunons)

All ather contributions, gifts, grants, and
similar amounts not included above .
Noncash contributions included in lines 1a-1f:
Total. Add lines 1a—1f .

-0 L0 T oW

Contributions, Gifts, Grants
and Other Similar Amounts

=gl {1}

Business Code |

2a ADMISSION FEES 712110 151,782 161,782

EVENT AND PROGRAM FEES 712110 97,532 97,532

MEMBERSHIPDUES 712110 98,781 98,791
¢

All other program service revenue . . . . 4]

Total. Add lines 2a—2f. . . . . . L. 348,1051

3 Investment income (including dlwdends mterest and
other similar amounts) . .. N 2,594 2,593

4 Income from investment of tax-exempt bond prooeeds N 0

5 Royalties . > 0

Program Service Revenue

O - O o0 o

(i) Real {ily Personal

6a Grossrents.
b Less: rental expenses .
Rental income or (loss) . . . 0
d Netrentalincomeor(loss). . . . . . . . . . . .. . W»
7a Gross amount from sales of (i) Securities (if) Other
assets ather than inventory . . 0
b Less: cost or ather basis :
and sales expenses . . . . 0 o
¢ Gainorflossy. . . . . . . G O}
d Netgainor{loss). . . . . . . . . .. .. ... ..m

2]

8a Gross income from fundraising
events {not including$ - 79,280
of contributions reported on line 1¢).
SeePartlV,line18. . . . . . . . . . a
b Less: ditect expenses. . . . . b
¢ Net income or (loss) from fundrals:ng events e e . P
9a Gross income from gaming activities. ;
See Part [V, fne19, ., . ., . . . . .. a 0f
b Less: direct expenses, . . . b 0F
¢ Net income or {loss) from gaming actawt:es T
10a Gross sales of inventory, less
returns and allowances . . . . . . . . . a 18,235
b Less:costofgoodssold. . . . . b 6,146
¢ Netincome or (loss) from sales of mventory PN
Miscellaneous Revenue Business Code

Other Revenue

[+
d All other revenue . .
e Total. Add linas 11a—11d ,
12  Total revenue. See instructions. .

== ==K

13,564
Farm 990 (2018)

vy

1,068,297
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HARRISONBURG CHILDREN'S MUSEUM, INC

16-1683676

Page 10

Statement of Functional Expenses

Sectmn 501 {c)(3} and 501(c}{4) organizations must complete all columns. All other organizations must complete column (A).

Check if Schedule O contains a respanse or note to any line in this Part 1X .

{C)

. . B D
3D;:, gfo”t ;r::;u%i ac';]?:‘;zt?/ ;;POY fed on lines 6b, 7b, Total é‘:[)zenses Prog;?}::sszr:ice Management and F::ér;i;;l;g
1  Grants and other assistance to domestic organizations :
domestic governmentis. See Part [V, line 21 . 0
2 Grants and other assistance to domestic
individuals. See Part |V, line 22 . 0
3  Grants and other assistance to foreign
organizations, foreign governments, and foreign
individuals. See Part [V, lines 15and 16 . . 0
4 Benefils paid to or for members . 0
5 Compensation of current officers, directors
frustees, and key employees . . 70,789 49 552 10,618 10,618
6 Compensation not included above, to dlsqaalmed
persons (as defined under section 4958(f)(1)} and
persons described in section 4958(c)(3)(B) . 34,252 29,114 5,138
7 Other salaries and wages . . 160,057 129,938 12,347 17,773
8 Pension plan accruals and consnbutlons (mclude
section 401(k) and 403(b) employer contributions) . 5,387 4,373 416 598
9  Other employee benefifs . e 0
10 Payroll taxes . 19,983 16,231 1,542 2,220
11 Fees for services (non- employees)
a Management . 0
b Legal. 0
¢ Accounting . 11,614 5,807 5,807
d Lobbying. . 0
e Professional fundra|smg services. See Part IV Izne 17 . 0l ST
f [nvestment management fees . . 1,008 1,008
g Other. (If line 11g amount exceeds 10% of hne 25 column
(A) amount, list line 11g expenses on Schedule 0.) Q 0
12  Advertising and promotion . 10,237 8,311 790 1,137
13  Office expenses . 6,327 5,136 488 703
14 Information technology . 2,560 2,078 197 284
15 Royalties. . . 0
16  Qccupancy . 86,103 69,900 6,642 9,561
17  Travel. .. . 4]
18 Payments of travel or entertalnment expenses
for any faderal, state, or local public officials . 1]
19  Conferences, conventions, and meetings . . 0
20 Interest. . . 5,970 5,970
21  Payments to afﬂhates G
22 Depreciation, depletion, and amortlzatzon 174,157 165,864 6,220 2.073
23  Insurance . 6,165 5,005 478 685
24  Other expenses. Etemlze expenses not covered !
ahove (List miscellaneous expenses in line 24e. If
line 24e amount exceeds 10% of line 25, column
(A) amount, list line-24e expenses on Schedule 0.}
a EXHIBITS 67,420 67,420
b PROGRAMSUPPLIESFIELDTRIPS 10,278 10,278
¢ DONORDEVELOPMENY 5275 5,275
d CREDITCARDFEES . 7,726 6,272 596 858
e Allother expenses 22,671 21,929 304 438
25 Total functional expenses. Add lines 1 through 24e . 707,989 591,401 58.559 58,030
26 Joint costs. Complete this line only if the
organization reported in column (B) joint costs
from a combined educational campaign and
fundraising solicitation. Check here . if
following SOP 98-2 (ASC 958-720}. . . .

Farm 990 (2018)




Form 990 (2018} HARRISONBURG CHILDREN'S MUSEUM, INC 16-1683676  Page 11
Balance Sheet
Check if Schedule O contains a respoense or note to any line in this Part X . D
(A (8}
Beginning of year tnd of year
1 Cash-non-interest-bearing . . 416,538 1 694,825
2 Savings and temporary cash investments . 201,861 2 201,070
3 Pledges and grants receivable, net . 0] 38 0
4  Accounts receivable, net . . 0 0
5  Loans and other receivables from current and former ofﬂcers dsrectors .
trustees, key employees, and highest compensated employees.
Complete Part I of Schedule L . .
6  Loans and other receivables from other disqualified persons (as defmed under saction
4958(f)(1)), persons described in section 4958(¢c)(3)(B), and contributing employers and
sponsoering organizations of section 501{c)(9) voluntary employees’ benaficiary
g organizations (see instructions). Complete Part I of Schedule L. . 6
21 7 MNotes and loans receivable, net , 7
< 8 Inventories for sale or use . . . 43521 8 13,971
9  Prepaid expenses and deferred charges 9
10a Land, buildings, and equipment: cost or
other basis. Complete Part V] of Schedule D 10a 3,904,477} :
b Less: accumulated depreciation . 100 988,126 2,928,029| 10e 2,916,351
11 Investments—publicly traded securities . 0] 11 0
12  Investments—other securities. See Part IV, fine 11 0] 12 0
13  Investments—program-related. See Part IV, line 11, 0] 13 0
14  Intangible assets . . Q] 14 0
15  Other assets. See Part IV, Iine 11 0] 15 209,777
16  Total assets. Add lines 1 through 15 {must equal Ilne 34) 3,550,780 16 4,035,994
17 Accounts payable and accrued expenses . 20,771 17 14,930
18  Granfs payabls. 0| 18
19  Deferred revenue . .. 0] 19
20 Tax-exempt bond liabilities . 0] 20
21 Escrow or custodial account liabiity. Comp}ete Part EV of Schedule D 0] 21
@[22 Loans and other payables to current and former officers, directors,
= trustees, key employees, highest compensated employees, and
'% disqualified persons. Complete Part Il of Schedule L . .
2 {23 Secured mortgages and notes payable to unrelated third parties .
24  Unsecured notes and foans payable to unrelated third parties .
25  Other liabilities (including federal income tax, payables to related third
parties, and other liabilities not included on lines 17-24). Complete Part X
of Schedule D . 172,884 25 97,428
26  Total liabilities. Add Ilnes 17 through 25 193,655| 26 112,358
Organizations that follow SFAS 117 (ASC 958), check here W . and |
g complete lines 27 through 29, and lines 33 and 34.
£ 127 Unrestricted net assets . 3,293,827 27 3,860,336
g 28  Temporarily resfricted net assets . 63,298| 28 63,300
T 29  Permanently restricted net assets . e e
& Qrganizations that do not follow SFAS 117 (ASC958), check here » I:] and
6 complete lines 30 through 34.
% 30  Capital stock or trust principal, or current funds | .
% 131 Paid-in or capital surplus, or fand, building, or equipment fund
::.; 32 Retained earnings, endowment, accurnulated income, or ather funds .
2 |33 Total net assets or fund balances . 3,357,125| 33 3,923,636
34  Total liabilities and net assetsffund balances 3,550,780 34 4,035,994

Form 990 (2018)




Form 090 (2018)  HARRISONBURG CHILDREN'S MUSEUM, ING 16-1683676 __Page 12
:E0dl | Reconciliation of Net Assets
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any lineinthisPartXf. . . . . . . . . . . .. ]:I

Total revenue {must equal Part VIll, column (A), line 12) . 1,068,297

Total expenses {must equal Part [X, column (A), ine 25} . 707,989

Revenue less expenses. Subtract line 2 from line 1, . 360,308

Net assets or fund balances at beginning of year (must equal Part X [me 33 column (A)) 3,357,125

Net unrealized gains {losses) on investments . . -1,303

Donated services and use of facilities . 207,506

Investment expenses .

Prior period adjustments . .

Other changes in net assets or fund balances (explam in Scheduie O) .

10  Net assets or fund balances at end of year, Combine lines 3 through 9 (must equal F’art X Ilne 33
column BY.

. Fmanc:al Statements and Reportmg

Chack if Schedule O contains a response or hote fo any line inthisPart Xll. . . . . . . . . . . ..
Yes | No

W o~ MO BN
DRSO || Wi |-

=
(=]

3,923,636

1 Accounting method used to prepare the Form 990: l:l Cash Accrual D Other
if the organization changed its method of accounting from a prior year or checked "Other," explain in
Schedule O.

2a  Were the organization's financial statements compiled or reviewed by an independent accountant? .
[f "Yes," check a box below to indisate whether the financial statements for the year were compiled or
reviewed on a separate basis, consolidated basis, or both:

. Separate basis D Consolidated basis D Both consolidated and separate basis

b Were the organization's financial statements audited by an independent accountant? . .
If “Yes," check a box below to indicate whether the financial statemenis for the year were aud:ted ona
separate basls, consolidated basis, or both:
D Separate basis D Consolidated basis D Bath consolidated and separate basis

e [f"Yes"to line 2a or 2b, does the organizafion have a committee that assumes responsibility for oversight of
the audit, review, or compilation of its financial statements and selection of an independent accountant? .
If the organization changed either its oversight process or selection process during the tax year, explain in
Schedule O.

3a  As a result of a federal award, was the organization required to undergo an audit or audits as set forth in

the Single Audit Act and OMB Circular A-1337 . . . . . e 3a X

b If “Yes," did the organization undergo the required audit or audsts’P If the orgamzatxon did not undergo the

required audit or audits, explain why in Schedule O and describe any steps taken to undergo such audits . .. . . 3b
Form 990 (2018




Depreciation and Amortization OME Mo, 1545-0172

Form 4562 (Including Information on Listed Property) 2@1 8

Depariment of the Treasury P Attach to your tax return. Altachment

Internal Revenue Servise — (95) P> Goto www.irs.gov/Form4562 for instructions and the latest information, Sequence No. 179
Name{s) shown on return Business or activity to which this form relates Identifying number
HARRISONBURG CHILDREN'S MUSEUM, INC[990 16-1683676

Election To Expense Certain Property Under Section 179
Note: If you have any listed property, complete Part V hefore you complete Part |,

1 Maximum amount (see instructions) . Coe . 1 1,000,000
2 Total cost of section 179 property placed in service (see lnstructlons) 2 66,575
3 Threshold cost of section 179 property before reduction in fimitation (see mstructlons) 3 2,500,000
4 Reduction in limitation. Subtract line 3 from line 2. If zero or less, enter -0- . . 4 0
5§ Dollar limitation for tax year. Subfract line 4 from line 1. if zero or less, enter -0-, i marned flling

separately, see instructions . . . . S PO I 1,000,000

8 {a} Description of propeﬂy {b} Cost {husiness use only) (c) Elected cost

7 Listed property. Enter the amount from line 29 . . . . . A I
8 Total elected cost of section 179 property. Add amounts in column (c) Ilnes 6 and 7 R
8 Tentative deduction. Enter the smaller of line 5 or line 8 .
10 Garryover of disallowed deduction from fine 13 of your 2017 Form 4562 .
11 Business income limitation. Enter the smaller of business income (not less than zero) or !lne 5 See |nstructlons
12 Section 179 expense deduction. Add lines 9 and 10, but don't enter more than line 11 . e
13 Carryover of disallowad deduction to 2019, Add fines 8 and 10, fessiine12 . . . . . . . . .w[13]
Note: Don't use Part I} or Part [1l below for listed property. Instead, use Part V.
FRYIE|  Special Depreciation Alowance and Other Depreciation (Don't include listed property. See instructions.)
14 Special depreciation allowance for qualified property {other than listed property) placed in service
during the tax year, Seeinstructions . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . e e s e 14
15 Property subject to section 168(f)(1) election. . . . . . . . . . . . oL o oL L 0L 0L 15
16 Other depreciation (including ACRS)., . . . e e e 16
CENalle MACRS Depreciation (Don't mc]ude i:sted property See mstructlons)
Section A
17 MACRS deductions for assets placed in service in tax years beginning before 2018
18 If you are efecting to group any assets placed in service during the tax year into one or more generai
assetaccounts,checkhere..................................bl:]
Section B - Assets Placed in Service During 2018 Tax Year Using the General Depreciation System
{b) Month and {c) Basis for depreciation
(a) Classification of properly year placed (businessfinvestmentuse | ) S;‘?;‘J’ew {e) Conventian (] Method {g) Depreciation deduction
in sarvice only-—ses instructions)
19 a 3-year property
b 5-year property
¢ 7-year property 66,575 7 HY 200DB 9,343
d 10-year property
e 15-year property 8,002 15 HY 150DB 400
f 2Q-year property
g 25-year property : 25 yrs, SiL
h Residential rental 27.5 yrs. MM S/L
property 27.5 yrs, MM SiL
i Nonresidential real 6/1/2018 104,800F 39 yrs. MM S/L 1,458
property : MM SiL _
Section C - Assets Placed in Service During 2018 Tax Year Using the Alternative Depreciation System
20 a Class life SiL
b 12-year 12 yrs. S/l
¢ 30-year 30 yrs. MM S/L
d 40-year 40 yrs. MM SiL
Summary (See instructions.)
21 Ltsted property. Enter amount fromline28 . . . . Ce e e 21
22 Total. Add amounts from line 12, lines 14 thraugh 17, Elnes 19 and 20 in column (g) and llne 21 Enter
here and on the appropriate lines of your return, Partnerships and S corporations—see instructions . . . . . . . ., , | 22 174,157
23 For assets shown above and placed in service during the current year, enter the
portion of the basis attribulable to section 263Acosts . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. .. 23
For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see separate instructions. Form 4562 (2018)

HTA




OMB No, 1545-0172

Virginia State Depreciation and Amortization

{Inctuding information on Listed Property)

B> Attach to your tax return,
P Goto www.irs.gov/Form4562 for instructions and the latest information.

o 4562

Department of the Treasury
tntemal Revenue Service

(9)

2018

Attachment

Sequence No. 179

Name(s) shown on return Business or activity to which this form relates

16-1683676

Identifying number

HARRESONBURG CHILDREN'S MUSEUM, INC[980
il Election To Expense Certain Property Under Section 179
Note: If you have any listed property, complete Part V before you complete Part |

1 Maximum amount (see instructions) . A 1 1,000,000
2 Total cost of section 179 property placed in service (see 1nstructlcms) 2 66,575
3 Threshold cost of section 179 property before reduction in limitation (see mstruchons) 3 2,500,000
4 Reduction in [imitation. Subtract line 3 from line 2, If zero or less, enter -0- . . 4 0
5 Doltar limitation for tax year, Subfract line 4 from line 1. If zero or less, enter -0-. If marrled f" img

5

separately, see insiructions .

1,000,000

(a} Description of property (b) Cost (business use only) {c} Elected cost

=]

7 Listed property. Enter the amount from line 29 L7
8 Total elected cost of section 179 property. Add amounts in column (c) Imes 6 and 7 8
9 Tentative deduction. Enter the smatler of line 5 or line & 9
10 Carryover of disallowed deduction from lina 13 of your 2017 Form 4562 . 10
11 Business income limitation. Enter the smaller of business income (not less than zero) ar llne 5 See mstrucnons 11
12 Section 179 expense deduction. Add lines 8 and 10, but don't enter more than fine 11 . | [ 12
. b 13 0}

13 Carryover of disallowed deduction to 2019. Add lines 9 and 10, less fine 12 .

Note: Don't use Part H or Part {ll below for listed property. Instead, use Part V.

Special Depreciation Allowance and Other Depreciation (Don't include listed property. See instruct

ions.)

14 ciaE depregiation allowance for qualified property {other than listed property) placed in setvice

during the tax year. See instructions . . .. 14
15 Property subject to section 168(f){(1} election . 15
16 Other depreciation (including ACRS) . . 16
SETA]EE  MACRS Depreciation (Don't mclude hsted property See mstructlons)
Section A

17 MACRS deductions for assets placed in setvice in tax years beginning before 2018 .

18 If you are electing to group any assets placed in service during the tax year into one or more general
asset accounts, check here

NS

7]

162,856

Section B - Assets Placed in Service Durlng 2018 Tax Year Using the General Depreciation System

{b} Month and {c) Basis for depreciation
{a} Classification of propesty year placed (businessfinvestment use () ?ee;g: ey {e) Convention {f} Method {5) Depreciation deduction
in sarvice only—ses inslructions)
19 a  3-year property S
h  5-year property
c 7-year property 66,575 7 HY 200DB 9,343
d 10-year property
e 15-year property 8,002 15 HY 150DB 400
f 20-year property
g 25-year property 25 yrs. S/L
h Residential rental 27.5 yrs, MM S/
property 27.5 yrs. MIvt S/L
i Nonresidential real 6/1/2018 104,800| 39 yrs. MM S/L 1,458
property . MM SiL ;
Section C - Assets Placed in Service During 2018 Tax Year Using the Alternative Depreciation System
20 a Class life : : SiL
b 12-year 12 yrs. SIL
c 30-year 30 yrs. M SiL
d 40-year 40 yrs. MM SiL
Summary (See instructions.)
21 Listed property. Enter amount from line 28 - 21
22 Total. Add amounts from line 12, lines 14 through 17, Imes 19 and 20 i column (g) and Eme 21 Enter
here and on the appropriate lines of your return, Partnerships and S corporations—see instructions . 22 174,157

23 For assets shown above and placed in service during the current year, enter the
portion of the basis atiributable to section 263A costs

23

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see separate instructions.
HTA

Form 4562 (2018)



| oms No. 15450047

2018

Open to Public

SCHEDULE A
(Form 990 or 990-EZ)

Public Charity Status and Public Support

Complete if the organization Is a section §01{c)(3) organization or a sectlon 4347(a){1} nonexempt charitable trust.

» Attach to Form 990 or Form 990-EZ.

Department of the Treasury

Internal Revenue Service > Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for instructions and the latest information. . Inspection .
Name of the organization Employer identification number
RISONBURG CHILDREN'S MUSEUM, INC 16-1683676

11t Reason for Public Charity Status (All organizations must complete this part.) See instructions,
The organization is nat a private foundation because it is: (For lines 1 through 12, check only one box.)
1 [ ] A church, convention of churches, or association of churches described in section 170(b){1)(A)(i).

2 D A schoal described insection 170{b}{1}{A)(if). {Attach Schedule E (Form 990 or 990-EZ).)
3 D A hospital or a cooperative hospital service organization described insection 170{b){1}{A)(iii).

4 D A madical research organization operated in conjunction with a hospital described In section 170{b){1)(A)(iii). Enter the
hospital's name, city, and state:

5 |:| An organization operated for the benefit of a college or university owned or operated by a governmental unit described in
section 170(b)(1){A)(iv). (Complete Part 11.)

D A faderal, state, or local government or governmental unit described in section 170(b){(1}{A){v}.

An organization that normaily receives a substantial part of its support from a governmental unit or from the general public
described in section 170{b)(1)}{A)(vi}. (Complete Part IL.)

D A community trust described in section 170(b){1){A}{vi}. (Complete Part I}

D An agricultural research organization described in section 170{b}{1}{A}(ix) operated in conjunction with a land-grant college
or university or a non-fand-grant college of agriculture (see instructions). Enter the name, city, and state of the college or
UV
10 [[ An organization that normally receives: (1) more than 33 1/3% of its support from contributions, membership fees, and gross
receipts from activities related (o its exempt functions—subject to certain exceptions, and (2) no more than 33 1/3% of its
support from gross investment income and unrelated business taxable income {less section 511 tax) from businesses
acquired by the organization after June 30, 1975. See section 509(a){2). (Complete Part Ill.)

1M D An organization organized and operated exclusively to test for public safety. See section 509(a)(4).

12 |:] An organization organized and operated exclusively for the benefit of, to perform the functions of, or to carry out the purposes
of one or more publicly supported organizations described in section 509{a}{1) or section 509{a)(2). See section 509(a)(3).
Check the box in lines 12a through 12d that describes the type of supporting organization and complete lines 12e, 12f, and 12g.

a D Type I. A supporting organization operated, supervised, or controlled by its supported organization(s), typically by giving
the supported organization(s) the power to regularly appoint or elect a majority of the directors or trustees of the supporting
organization. You must complete Part IV, Sections A and B.

b D Type Ii. A supporting organization supervised or controlled in connection with its supported organization(s), by having
control or management of the supporting organization vested in the same persons that control or manage the supported
organization(s). You must complete Part IV, Sections A and C.

¢ [:] Type Il functionally integrated. A supporting organization operated in connection with, and functionally integrated with,
its supported organization{s) {(see instructions}. You must complete Part IV, Sections A, D, and E.

d D Type Il non-functionally integrated. A supporting organization aperated in connection with its supported organization(s)
that is not functionally Integrated. The organization generally must satisfy a distribution requirement and an attentiveness
requirement (see instructions). You must complete Part IV, Sections A and D, and Part V.

e D Chack this box if the organization received a written determination from the IRS that it is a Type |, Type I, Type lll
functionally integrated, or Type 1lf non-functionally integrated supporiing organization.

f Enter the number of supported organizations . . . . . . . . . . .

__d  Provide the following information about the supported organization(s}).

~ &

w om

[ d

(i} Name of supported organization (i} EIN {lii} Type of organization | {iv) fs the organization | {v} Amount of monatary {vi) Amount of
{described on lines 110 | listed in your governing support (see ather support (see
above {(see instructions)) dacurment? instructions) instructions)

Yes No
{(A)
(B)
(€
(D)
(E)
Totai 0 0
For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990 or 990-EZ. Schedule A (Form 990 or $90-EZ) 2018

HTA




HARRISONBURG CHILDREN'S MUSEUM, NG

16-1883676

Page 2

S hi d le A (Form 990 or 890-EZ) 2018

Support Schedule for Organizations Described in Sections 170{(b){1){A}(iv) and 170(b){1}{A}{vi}
(Complete only if you checked the box an line 5, 7, or 8 of Part | or if the organization failed to qualify under

Part 1ll. if the organization fails to qualify under the tests listed helow, please complete Part IIL)

Section A. Public Support

Calendar year {or fiscal year beginning in) 4 (a) 2014 {b) 2015 (c) 2016 {d) 2017 {e) 2018 {f) Total
1 Gifts, grants, contributions, and
membership fees received. (Do not
include any "unusuaf grants."} . 235,966 694 169 431,882 476,437 694,538 2,532,892
2 Taxrevenues levied for the
organization's benefit and either paid
to or expended on its behalf. . 0
3 The value of services or facilities
furnished by a governmentai unit to the
organization without charge . 67,668 151,378 207,506 426,552
4 Total. Add lines 1 through 3 . . 499,550 627,815 802,044 2,959,544
5 The portion of total contributions by : o
each person {other than a
governmentai unit or pubicly
supported organization) included on
line 1 that exceeds 2% of the amount
shown on line 11, column {f}.
6 Public support. Subfract line 5 from iine 4 2,859,544
Section B. Total Support :
Calendar year {or fiscal year beginning in) > {a} 2014 {(b) 2015 {c) 2016 (d} 2017 {e) 2018 (f) Total
7  Amounts from line 4 . . 235,966 594,169 499,550 627,815 902,044 2,059,544
8 Gross income from interest, dwrdends
payments received on securities loans,
rents, royalties, and income from
similar sources . . 7,409 7,083 5,960 4,864 2,594 27,890
9 Net income from unrelated business
activities, whether or not the business is
regularly carried on . 0
10 Other income. Do not include gain or
loss from the sale of capital assets
(Explain in Part VL.) . 71,720 46,832 118,552
11 Total support. Add lines 7 through 10 Sl s e Shri 3,105,986
12  Gross receipts from related activities, aetc. (see mstructlons) ..... . 12 l 371,165
13  First five years. If the Form 990 is for the organization's first, second, third, fourth or fﬁh tax year as a section 501(c)(3)
arganization, check this box and stop here . . e e e e e e e e e e > ’:]
Section C. Computation of Public Support Percentage
14 public support percentage for 2018 (line 8, column {f) divided by line 11, column {f}) . 14 95.29%
45  Public support percentage from 2017 Schedule A, Partll, line 4. . . . . . . . . . . . 15 90.72%

16a 33 1/3% support test—2618. If the arganization did not check the box on line 13, and line 14 is 33 1/3% or more, check this box

b

17a 1

18

and stop here, The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization . .. -

33 1/3% support test—2017. If the organization did not check a box on line 13 or 164, and line 15 Is 33 1/3% or more, check this
box and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization . RN
0%-facts-and-circumstances test-—2018, if the organization did not check a box on line 13, 16a, or 16b, and line 14

10% or more, and if the organization meets the "facts-and-circumstances® test, check this box and stop here. Explain in
Part VI how the organization meets the "facts-and-circumstances" tast. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported
organization. . . e - . e
10%-facts-and-circumstances test—2017. If the organization did not check a box on line 13, 16a, 16b, or 173, and line
15 i3 10% or more, and if the organization meets the "facts-and-circumstances" test, check this box and stop here.
Explain in Part VI how the organization meets the "facts-and-circumstances" test. The organization qualifies as a publicly

supported organization .
Private foundation. If the organization did not check a box on fine 13, 16a, 16b, 17a, or 17b, chack this box and see

instructions .

»[X]
]

[ ]

N
»[ ]

Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-E2) 2018




Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-E7) 2018 HARRISONBURG CHILDREN'S MUSEUM, INC 16-1683676 Page 3
Support Schedule for Organizations Described in Section 509(a)(2)

(Complete only if you checked the box on line 10 of Part | or if the organization failed to qualify under Part i,

If the organization fails to qualify under the tests listed below, please complete Part 11.)

Section A. Public Support

Calendar year (or fiscal year beginning in) > (a) 2014 {b} 2015 {c) 2016 {(d} 2017 {e) 2018 {f} Total
1  Gifts, grants, cantribulions, and membership fees
received. (Do nct include any "unusual grants.") 0

2 Gross recelpts from admissions, merchandise
sald or services performad, or facilities
furnished in any aclivity that is related to the

organizaiion's tax-exempt purpose . . . . . . 0
3 Gross receipts from activities that are not an

unrelated frade or business under section 513 , 0
4  Tax revenuas fevied for the

organization's benefit and either paid to

or expended on its behalf . 0
5 The value of services ar facilities

furnished by a governmental unit fo the

Q

organization without charge . .o
6 Total. Add lines 1 through 5. . . . . . 0 0 0 0 0 8]
7a Amounis included on lines 1, 2, and 3
received from disqualified persons .
b Amounts included on lines 2 and 3
received from other than disquaified
persons that exceed the greater of $5,000
or 1% of the amount on line 13 for the year . . . ¢

¢ Addlines 7aand 7b G
8 Public support (Subtract line 7¢ from
line 6.) . G
Section B. Totai Support
Calendar year (or fiscal year beginning in} > (a) 2014 (b} 2015 {c) 2016 {d) 2017 (e) 2018 (f) Total
9 Amounts from line&. . . . . . . . . 0 0 4] 0 0 0
10a Gross income from inferest, dividends,
payments received on securities loans, rents,
royalties, and income from similar scurces . . . 0
b Unrelated business taxable income (less
section 511 taxes) from businesses
0

acquired after June 30, 1975

¢ Addlines 10aand 10b. . . . . . . . g 0 0 0 0 0
11 Net income from unrelated business

activities not included in ine 18b, whether

or not the business is regularly carried on . 0
12  Other income. Do nat include gain or

loss from the sale of capital assets

(Explainin PartVL). . . . . . . .. 0
13 Total support. {Add lines 9, 10c, 11,

andi2). . . . . .. 0 0 0 0 0 o
14  First five years. If the Form 990 is for the organization's first, second, third, fourth, or fifth tax year as a section 501{c){3)

organization, check this box and stop here . . . . e e e e e e e e s e e e e .>I:]
Section €. Computation of Public Support Percentage
15 Public support percentage for 2018 (line 8, column (f), divided by line 13, column {f}. . . . . . . . . . . . 15 0.00%
16 Public support percentage from 2017 Schedule A, Partill, fine15. . . . . . . .« . . . . ... 16 0.00%
Section D. Computation of Investment Income Percentage
17 Ilnvestment income percentage for 2018 (line 10¢, column (f}, divided by line 13, column {f}} . . . . . . . . . . 17 0.00%
18  Investment income percentage from 2017 Schedule A, Partlll, line 17. . . . . 18 0.00%
19a 33 1/3% support tests—2018. If the organization did not check the box on line 14 and Ime ‘[5 is more than 33 1/3% and line 17 is

not more than 33 1/3%, check this box and stop here, The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization . . . . A [:I

b 33 1/3% support tests—2017. If the organization did not check a box on line 14 or line 19a, and line 16 is more than 33 1/3%, and

line 18 is not more than 33 1/3%, check this box and stop here. The organizalion qualifies as a publicly supporied organizaton. . . . . . . . . P D

20 Private foundation, If the organization did not check a box on line 14, 18a, or 19b, check this box and see Instructions . . . . . . . . . . . . P D

Schedule A (Form 980 or 990-EZ) 2018




Schedute A (Form 990 or 990-E7) 2018 HARRISONBURG CHILDREN'S MUSEUM, INC 16-1683676 Page 4
EN|  Supporting Organizations

{Complete only if you checked a box in line 12 on Part |, If you checked 12a of Part |, complete Sections A
and B. If you checked 12b of Part |, complete Sections A and C. If you checked 12c of Part I, complete
Sections A, D, and E. If you checked 12d of Part |, complete Sections A and D, and complete Part V.)

Section A. All Supporting Organizations

Yes| No

1 Are all of the organization's supported organizations listed by name in the organization's governing
documents? If "No,” describe in Part VI how the supported organizations are designated. If designated by
class or purpose, describe the designaltion. If historic and continuing relationship, explain.

2 Did the organization have any supported organization that does not have an IRS determination of status
under section 509(a){1) or {2)? If "Yes," explain in Part Vi how the organization determined that the supported
organization was described in section 509(a)(1} or (2).

3a Did the organization have a supported organization described in section 501{c}{4), (5), or (8)? If "Yes," answer
(b) and (o) below.

b Did the arganization confirm that each supported organization qualified under section 501(c){4), (5}, or (8} and
satisfied the public support tests under section 50%{a){2)? If "Yes, " describe in Part VI when and how the
organization made the determination.

¢ Did the organization ensure that all support to such organizations was used exclusively for section 170{c}(2)
(B) purposes? If "Yes,* explain in Part VI what conlirols the organization put in place to ensure stch use.

4a Was any supported organization not organized in the United States ("foreign supported organization")? if
"Yes," and if you checked 12a or 12b in Part I, answer (b) and {c} below.

b Did the organization have ultimate control and discretion in deciding whether to make grants to the foreigh
supported organization? If"Yes," describe in Part VI how the organization had such control and discretion
despite being controlled or supervised by or in connection with its supported organizations.

¢ Did the organization support any foreign supported organization that does not have an IRS determination
under sections 501{c)(3) and 508(a){1) or (2)? If“Yes," explain in Part VI what controls the organizafion used
to ensure that alf support to the foreign supported organization was used exclusively for section 170{c)(2}(B)
pUrposes.

5a Did the organization add, substitute, or remove any supported organizations during the tax year? Iif"Yes,"
answer (b) and (c} below (if applicable). Also, provide detail in Part VI, including (i) the names and EIN
numbers of the supported organizations added, substituled, or removed; (i) the reasons for each such action;
{ifi) the authority under the organization's organizing document authorizing such action; and (iv) how the action
was accomplished (such as by amendment to the organizing document).

b Type I or Type Il only.Was any added or substituted supported organization part of a class already
designated in the organization's organizing document?

¢ Substifutions only. Was the substitution the result of an event beyond the organization's control?

6 Did the arganization provide support (whether in the form of grants or the provision of services or facilities} to
anyone other than {i) ifs supported organizations, (if) individuals that are part of the charitable class benefited
by one or more of its supported organizations, or (jii) other supporting organizations that also support or
benefit one or more of the filing organization's supported organizations? if "Yes," provide defail in Part VI

7  Did the organization provide a grant, loan, compensation, or other similar payment to a substaniial contributor
{as defined in section 4958(c}3){C)), a family member of a substantial contributor, or a 35% cantrolled entity
with regard to a substantial contributor? If "Yes," complete Part | of Schedule L (Form 990 or 990-EZ).

8 Did the organization make a Joan to a disqualified person {as defined in section 4958) not described In line 77
If "Yes," complete Part | of Schedule L (Form 990 or 990-EZ).

9a Was the organization controlled directly or indirectly at any time during the tax year by one or more
disqualified persons as defined in section 4946 (other than faundation managers and organizations described
in section 509(a){1) or (2))7 F"Yes," provide detail in Part V1. -

b Did one or more disqualified persons (as defined in line 9a} hold a controlling interest in any entity in which
the supporting orgahization had an interest? If "Yes," provide deiail in Part VI,

¢ Did a disqualified person (as defined in line 9a) have an ownership interest in, or derive any personal benefit
from, assets in which the supporting organization also had an inlerest? /f "Yes," provide detail in Part VI.

10a Was the organization subject to the excess business holdings rules of section 4943 because of section
4943(f) (reqarding certain Type il supporting organizations, and ali Type |l non-functionally integrated
supporting organizationsy? If "Yes," answer 10b below.

b Did the organization have any excess business holdings in the tax year? (Use Schedule C, Form 4720, fa
defermine whether the organization had excess business holdings.)

10a

10b
Schedule A (Form 980 or 990-EZ) 2018




Schedula A (Form 890 or 590-EZ) 2018 HARRISONBURG CHILDREN'S MUSEUM, INC 16-1683676 Page B
' Supporting Organizations {(continued)

Yes I No

11 Has the organization accepted a gift or contribution from any of the following persons?
a A person wha directly or indirectly controls, either alone or together with persons described in {b) and (c)
below, the governing body of a supported organization?
b A family member of a person described in {a} above? 11b
¢ A 35% controlled entity of a person described in (a} or (b) above? If "Yes"{o a, b, or ¢, provide detall in Part V1. 11c
Section B. Type | Supporting Organizations

1 Did the directors, trustees, or membership of one or more supported organizations have the power to
regularly appoint or elect at least a majority of the organization’s directors or trustees af alt times during the
tax year? If"No,” describe in Part VI how the supported organization(s) effectively operated, supervised, or
controlled the organization's aclivities. If the organization had more than one supported organization,
describe how the powers fo appoint and/or remove directors or truslees were allocated among the supported
organizations and what conditions or restrictions, if any, applied to such powers during the lax year.

2 Did the organization operate for the benefit of any supported organization other than the suppaorted
organization{s) that operated, supervised, or controlled the supporting organization? if “Yes,” explain in Part
VI how providing such benelit carried ouf the purposes of the supported organization(s) that operated,
supervised, or confrolled the supporting organization.

Section C. Type Il Suppotrting Organizations

Yes| No

1 Were a majority of the organization's directors or trustees during the tax year also a majority of the directors
ar frusteas of each of the organization's supported organization{s)? If "No," describe in Part VI how control
or management of the supporting organization was vested in the same persons that controfled or managed
the supported organization(s).

Section D, All Type Ill Supporting Organizations

1 Did the organization provide to each of is supported orgarnizations, by the last day of the fifth month of the
organization's tax year, (i} a written notice describing the type and amount of support provided during the prior lax
year, (i) a copy of the Form 990 that was most recently filed as of the date of notification, and (iii} copies of the
organization's governing documents in effect on the date of notification, to the extent not previously provided?

2 Were any of the arganization's officers, directors, or trustees either (i) appointed or etected by the supported
organization(s) or (ii) serving on the governing body of a supported organization? If "No,” explain in Part VI how
the organization maintained a close and continuous working refationship with the supported organization(s).

3 By reason of the relationship described in (2), did the organization's supported organizations have a
significant voice in the organization's investment policies and in directing the use of the organization's
income or assets at all times during the tax year? If"Yes," describe in Part Vi the role the organization’s
supported organizations played in this regard.

Section E. Type lll Functionally Integrated Supporting Organizations
1 Check the box next to the method thal the organization used to satisfy the Infegral Part Test during the year (see insfructions).
a [:] The organization satisfied the Activities Test. Complete line 2 below.

b [:I The organization is the parent of each of its supported organizations. Complefe line 3 below.
c D The organization supported a governmental entity. Describe in Part VI how you supported a government enily (see instructions).

2 Activities Test. Answer (a) and {(b) below.

a Did substantially all of the organization's activities during the tax year directly further the exempt purposes of
the supported organization(s) to which the organization was responsive? If “Yes," then in Part VI identify
those supported crganizations and explain how these aciivities directly furthered their exempf purposes,
how the organization was responsive to those supported organizations, and how the organization determined
that these activities constituted subsitantially all of its activifies.

b Did the activities described In (a) constitute activities that, but for the organization's involvement, one or more
of the organization's supported arganization(s) would have been engaged in? If"Yes,"” explain in Part Vi the
reasons for the organization's position that its supported organization(s} would have engaged in these
activities but for the organization's involvement.

3 Parent of Supported Organizations. Answer {a) and (b) below.

a Did the organization have the power to regularly appoint or elect a majority of the officers, directors, or
trustees of each of the supported organizations? Provide details in Parf VI,

b Did the organization exercise a substantial degree of direction over the policies, programs, and activities of each

of its supported organizations? If "Yes,” describe in Part VI the role played by the organization in this regard.
Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2018




dule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2018 HARRISONBURG CHILDREN'S MUSEUM, INC

16-1683676 Page B

Type Il Non-Functionally Integrated 509(a){3) Supporting Organizations

. 1 “ “ Check here If the organization satisfied the Integral Part Test as a qualifying trust on Nov. 20, 1970 (explain in Part V). See
instructions. All other Type Il non-functicnally integrated supporting organizations must complete Sections A through E.

Section A - Adjusted Net Income

(B) Current Year

{A) Prior Year (optional)

1 Net short-term capital gain

2 Racoveries of prior-year distributions

3 Other gross income (sse instructions)

4 Add lines 1 through 3.

5 Depreciation and depletion

Db |G =

6 Portion of operating expenses paid or incurred for production or
collection of gross income or for managerment, canservation, or
maintenance of properiy held for praduclion of income (see instructions)

=1}

7 Other expenses {see instructions)

[

8 Adjusted Net Income {subtract lines 5, 6, and 7 from line 4).

0 0

Section B - Minimum Asset Amount

(B) Current Year

(A} Prior Year. | {optional)

1 Aggregate fair market value of all non-exempt-use assets (see
instructions for short tax year or assets held for part of year):

a Average monthly value of securities

b Average monthly cash balances

¢ Fair market value of ather non-exempt-use assets

d Total (add lines 1a, 1b, and 1c)

e Discount claimed for blockage or other
factors (explain in detail in Part V)

nNE

2 Acquisition indebtedness applicable to non-exempt-use assets

3 Subfract line 2 from line 1d. 3 0 0

4 Cash deemed held for exempt use. Enter 1-1/2% of line 3 (for greater amount,

sae instructions). 4 0 0

5 Net value of non-exempt-use assets (subtract line 4 from line 3} 5 0 0

6 Multiply line 5 by .035. 6 0 0

7 Recoveries of prior-year distributions 7 0 0

8 Minitmum Asset Amount (add line 7 fo line 6) 3 0 0
Section C - Distributable Amount Current Year

1 Adjusted net income far prior year (from Section A, line 8, Column A} 1 0

2 Enter 85% of line 1 2| 0

3 Minimum asset amount for prior year (from Section B, line 8, Column A) 3 0

4 Enter greater of ling 2 or line 3. 4 0

5 Income tax imposed in prior year 5

& Distributable Amount. Subtract line 5 from line 4, unless subject to ;

emergency temporary reduction {see instructions). 61 0

7 B Chack here if the current year is the organization's first as a non-functionally :ntegrated Type lll supporttng organization (see

instructions).

Schedule A {Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2018



Schedule A (Form 890 or 990-EZ) 2018 HARRISONBURG CHILDREN'S MUSEUM, INC 16-1683676 page 7
:3 Type Il Non-Functionally Integrated 509(a)(3) Supporting Organizations (continued)

Section D - Distributions Current Year

1 Amounts paid to supported arganizations to accomplish exempt purposes

2  Amounts paid to perform activity that directly furthers exempt purposes of supported
organizations, in excass of income from activity

Administrative expenses paid to accomplish exempt purposes of supported organizations
Amounts paid to acquire exempt-use assets

Qualified set-aside amounts (prior IRS approval required)

Other distributions {describe in Part VI). See instructions.

Total annual distributions. Add lines 1 through 6. 0
Distributions to attentive supported organizations to which the organization is responsive
{provide details in Part V1). See instructions.

Distributable amount for 2018 from Section C, line & 0

Q@ (= h [ | B |

=]

10 Line 8 amount divided by line 8 amount 0.000
. (i) (i)

Section E - Distribution Allocations (see instructions) (i) Underdistributions Distributable
Pre-2018 Amount for 2018

Excess Distributions

1 Distributable amount for 2018 from Section C, line 6

2 Underdistributions, if any, for years prior to 2018

{reasonable cause required—explain in Part VI). See

insfructions.

Excess distributions carryover, if any, to 2018

From 2013 .

From 2014. .

From 2015 .

From 2016 .

From2017. . . . . . .

Total of lines 3a through e

Applied to underdistributions of prior years

Applied to 2018 distributable amount

Carryover from 2013 not applied {see instructions)

Remainder. Subtract lines 3¢, 3h, and 3i from 3£

Distributions for 2018 from

Section D, line 7: $

a_ Applied to underdistributions of prior years
b Applied to 2018 distributable amount
¢ Remainder. Subtract lines 4a and 4b from 4.

5 Remaining underdistributions for years prior to 2018, if
any. Subtract lines 3g and 4a from line 2. For result
greater than zero, explain in Part V1. See instructions.

6  Remaining underdistributions for 2018. Subfract lines 3h
and 4b from line 1. For result greater than zero, explain in
Part VI. See instructions.

7  Excess distributions carryover to 2019, Add lines 3j
and 4c.

8  Breakdown of line 7:

Excess from 2014 .

Excess from 2015.

Excess from 2016 .

Excess from 2017 .

Excess from 2018 .

W

et o | 2 e [ jC |6 | T (D

-

oo [T W
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?F%?E%g'gf D Supplemental Financial Statements

Department of the Treasury
Imernal Revenue Service P Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for instructions and the latest information.

’ OMB No. 1545-0047

B Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 9980,
Part IV, line 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11a, 11b, 11¢, 11d, 11e, 111, 12a, or 12b.
b Attach to Form 890.

Mame of the organization

HARRISONBURG CHILDREN'S MUSEUM, INC 16-1683676

Employer identiflcation numher -

Organizations Maintaining Donor Advised Funds or Other Similar Funds or Accounts.
Complete if the organization answered *Yes" on Form 980, Part IV, line 6.

onoda WM =

(a) Donor advised funds {b) Funds and other accounts

Total number at end of year .

Aggregate value of contributions to {during year)
Aggregate value of grants from {during year) . . .
Aggregate value at end of year .

Did the organization inform all donors and donor advisors in writing that the assets held in donor advised

funds are the organization's propetly, subject to the organization's exclusive legal controf? . . . . . .. D Yes I_—_| No
Did the arganization inform alf grantees, donors, and danor advisors in writing that grant funds can be used

only for charitable purposes and not for the benefit of the donor or donor advisor, or for any other purpose

conferring impermissible private benefit? . . . . . ... . . 0 L L L 0 oL o L L0 EIYeSD No

Conservation Easements.
Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 7.

=T 2 B = ]

Y

Purpose(s) of conservation easements held by the organization (check all that apply).
Preservation of land for public use {e.g., recreation or education} D Preservation of a historically important land area

D Protection of natural habitat D Preservation of a certified historic structure

\:I Preservation of apen space
Complete lines 2a thraugh 2d if the organization held a qualified conservation confribution in the form of a conservafion

easement on the last day of the tax year. i Held at the End of the Tax Year
Total humber of conservation easements . C 2a

Total acreage restricted by conservation easements . . . . e 2h

Number of conservation easements on a cerlified historic structure |ncluded in (a) . 2c

Number of conservation easements included in (¢} acquired after 7/25/06, and not on a

historie structure listed In the National Register . . . . . 2d-

Number of conservation easements modified, transferred, released extmgurshed or termmated by the organization during
the tax year W

Number of states where property subject to conservation easement is located
Daes the arganization have a written policy regarding the periodic monitaring, inspection, handling of
violations, and enforcement of the conservation easements itholds?. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. D Yes D No

Staff and volunteer hours devoted to monitoring, inspecting, handling of violations, and enforcing conservation easements during the year

>

Amount of expenses incurred in monitoring, inspecting, handling of violations, and enforcing conservation easements during the year

> $

Does each conservation easement reported on line 2(d) above satisfy the requirements of section 170{k){4)(B)(i)

and section 170(NBYH? . . . . . . . . . Yes [ | No
In Part Xill, describe how the organization reports corzservatmn easements in lts revenue and expense statement and

balance sheat, and include, if applicable, the text of the footnote to the organization's financial staterents that describes the

organization’s accounting for conservation easements.

IERRl Organizations Maintaining Collections of Art, Historical Treasures, or Other Similar Assets.

Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part 1V, line 8.

ia

if the organization elected, as permitted under SFAS 116 (ASC 958), not to report in its revenue statement and balance sheet

works of art, historical freasures, or other similar assets held for public exhibition, education, or resedfeh in furtherance of

public sarvice, provide, in Part Xlil, the text of the footnote o its financial statements that describes these items.

If the organization elected, as permitted under SFAS 116 (ASC 958), to report in its revenue statement and balance sheet

warks of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets held for public exhibition, education, or research in furtherance of

public service, provide the following amounts relating to these items:

(i) Revenue included on Form 990, Part VL fine 1. . . . . . . . . . . . . . ... .. 8 e

(i} Assets included in Form 990, Part X, . . . . . N O
If the organization received or held works of arf, hrstoncai treasures or other S|m;lar assets for financial gain, provide the

2
following amounts required to be reported under SFAS 116 (ASC 958) relating to these items:
a Revenueincluded on Form 990, Part Vil line . . . . . . . . . . . . .. s
b Assets included in Form 990, Part X, . . . . . T

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the [nstructions for Form 990

HTA
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Schedule D (Form 990) 2018 HARRISONBURG CHILBREN'S MUSEUM, ING 16-1683676 Page 2
RETO]IE  Organizations Maintaining Collections of Art, Historical Treasures, or Other Similar Assets (continued)
3 Usmg the organization’s acquisition, accassion, and other records, check any of the following that are a significant use of its
collection items (check all that apply):
a D Public exhibition d L__’ Loan or exchange programs

b D Schalarly research e |:| Other

c D Preservation for future generations
4 Provide a description of the organization's collections and explain how they further the organization's exempt purpose in Part
X,
5 During the year, did the organization solicit or receive donations of art, historical treasures, or other similar
assets to be sold to raise funds rather than to be maintained as part of the organization's collection? . . . . . |:| Yes L—_l No
W2 Escrow and Custodial Arrangements.
Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 9, or reported an amount on Form
990, Part X, line 21.
1a Is the organization an agent, trustee, custodian or other intermediary for conributions or other assets not
included on Form 990, Part X?. . . . . oo D Yes [ no
b If"Yes," explain the arrangement in Part XHI and complete the followmg table

Amount
¢ Beginningbalance. . . . . . . . . . . L oL 000 oo e 1¢ 0
d Additionsduringtheyear. . . . . . . . . . . . oo 0oL L 1d
¢ Distributions duringtheyear. . . . . . . . . . . o . o L0 o0 000 1e
f Endingbalance. . . . . . . L L L L 000 e e e e e 1f 0
2a Did the organization include an amount on Form 990, Part X, line 21, for escrow or custadial account liability? D Yes No
b If“Yes," explain the arrangement in Part X|Il, Check here if the explanation has been provided on Part Xill .
-Es0'2} Endowment Funds.
Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 10.
{a) Current year {b) Prior year (¢} Two years back {d) Thrae years back (e) Four years back
1a Beginning of year batance . . . . 0 0 0 0
b  Coniributions . e
¢ Netinvestment earnings, gains,
and losses . .
d Grants or schoiarshms
Other expenditures for facilities
and programs . .
f Administrative expenses . .
g Endofyearbalance. . . . 0 0 0 0 0
2 Provide the estimated percentage of the current year end balance (fine 1g, column {a)) held as:
a Board designated or quasi-endowment Yo
Permanent endowment L %
¢ Temporarily restricted endowment L)
The percentages on lines 2a, 2b, and 2¢ should equal 100%.
3a Are there endowment funds not in the possession of the organization that are held and administered for the
organization by: Yes | No
{iy wunrelated organizations . . . . . . . . . . L L L L oL oL Lo e e e e 3al(i)
(li) related organizations. . . . e T
b If*Yes" on line 3a(ii), are the related orgamzatlons [lsted as requwed on Schedule R‘? e e e e e 3b

4 Describe in Part Xlii the intended uses of the organization's endowment funds.

s a i Land, Buildings, and Equipment.
Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part |V, line 11a. See Form 990, Part X, line 10.

Description of property (a) Cost or other basis {b) Cost or ather basis (e) Accumuiated {d) Book value
{investment) {other) depreciation
ia Land. 0 0 0
b Buildings . . 0 750,000 262,819 487,181
¢ Leasehold |mprovements 0 2,062,733 199,302 1,856,166
d Equipment . e e e e 0 1,075,350 524,470 558,591
e Other. . . . 0 16,394 1,535 14,413
Total. Add lines 1a through 1e (Column (d) must equal Form 990, Part X, column (B), line 10c.) . . . . . . . » 2,916,351

Schedule D {Form 990} 2018




Sched ’E(C‘rm 990)2018  HARRISONBURG CHILDREN'S MUSEUM, INC 16-1683676 Page 3

Investments—Other Securities.
Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 11b. See Form 990, Part X, line 12.

(6} Method of valuation:
Cost or end-of-year market value

() Deseription of security ar category () Book value
(including name of security)

(1) Financial derivatives . . . . . . . . . . . 0
(2) Closely-held equity iterests . . . . . . . . 0
(3) Other

B O
B e
)

{tH)
Total. (Column (b) must equal Form 990, Part X, col. (8) line 12.) B e
I-PRAYTE Investments—Program Related.
Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part [V, line 11c. See Form 990, Part X, line 13.

{a) Description of invesiment {b) Book value {c} Method of valuation:
Cost or end-of-year market value

(1)
(2)
(3)
{4)
{5)
{6)
{7)
{8)
Total. (Column (b) must equal Form 990, Part X, col. {B) line 13) W ]
- EG1N€] Other Assets.

Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 11d. See Form 990, Part X, line 15.
{b) Book value

209,777

(a) Desceription

(1) AR LESS DISCOUNTS & ALLOWANCE FOR PROMISES TO GIVE

(2}
(3}
4)
(5)
(6)
{7}
(8)

(9}
Total. (Column {b) must equal Form 990, Pari X, col. (B} fine 1), . . . . . . . . . . . . . - . . . .. . » 209,777

BPL2 & Other Liabilities.
Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 11e or 11f. See Form 990, Part X,

ling 25,

1. {a) Dascription of liability (b} Book value

(1) Federal income taxes a 0

(2) PAYROLL TAXES PAYABLE 0

{3) CAPITAL LEASE LIABILITY 97,428

“

{5)

{6)

{7}

(&)

(9)
Total. (Column {b) must equal Form 990, Part X, col. {B) line 25) » 97 4281
2. Liabitity for uncertain tax positions. In Part Xil, provide the text of the footnote to the orgamzatlon s fi nanczal statements that reports the
arganization's liability for uncertain tax positions under FIN 48 (ASC 740). Chack here If the text of the footnote has been provided in Part Xl D

Schedule D {Form 990} 2018



chele D (Form 990) 2018~ HARRISONBURG CHH.DREN'S MUSEUM, INC 16-1683676 Page 4
B9 dl Reconciliation of Revenue per Audited Financial Statements With Revenue per Return.
Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 12a.

1 Total revenue, gains, and other support per audited financial sfatements . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
Amounts included on fine 1 but not on Form 980, Part VI, line 12: :

a Netunrealized gains (losses) oninvestments. . . . . . . . . . . . . 2a

b Donated services and use of facllites . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. 2b

¢ Recoverdesofprioryeargrants. . . . . . . . . . .. . .. oo 2c

d Other(DescribeinPart XHL). . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. 2d

e Add lines 2a through 2d . 0
3 Subitractline 2e from line 1. . . 4]
4 Amounts included on Form 990, Part Vill ]zne 12 but not on i:ne 1

a Investment expenses not included on Form 990, Part Vill, line 7b. . . . . 4a

b Other(DescribeinPart XILY, . . . . . . . . . . .. o000 4b -

¢ Addlinesdaand4b. . . . . e e e e dc 0
Total revenue. Add lines 3 and 4c (Thfs must equa! Form 990 Pan‘! Ime 12) e 5 0
A |E Reconciliation of Expenses per Audited Financial Statements With Expenses per Return.

Complete if the arganization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 12a.

1 Total expenses and losses per audited financial statements .
2 Amounts included on line 1 but not on Form 890, Part IX, line 25:

a Donated services anduse offacilities. . . . . . . . . . . . .. .. 2a

b Prioryearadjustments. . . . . . . . . . . . . Lo Lo 2b

¢ Otherlosses. . . . e e e e e e e 2c

d Other (Describe in Part XIEI ) e e e e e e e e 2d

e Add lines 2a through 2d . 0
3  Subtract line 2e from line 1. . . 0
4  Amounts included on Form 890, Part [X, lme 25 but not on I:ne 1:

a [nvestment expenses not included on Form 990, Part Vill, line7b. . . . . 4a

b Other{DescribeinPart XIILY., . . . . . . . . . . ..o 4b

¢ Add lines 4a and 4b . 0
5  Total expenses. Add lines3 and 4c (ThfS must equal Form 990 Pan‘! hne 18 ) 0

T (1l Supplemental Information.
Provide the dascriptions required for Part If, lines 3, 5, and 9; Part lll, lines 1a and 4; Part 1V, fines 1b and 2b; Part V, line 4; Part X, line
2; Part XI, lines 2d and 4b; and Part XII, lines 2d and 4b. Also complete this part to provide any additional information.

Schedule D {Form 990) 2018




Schedule D (Form 990) 2018 HARRISONBURG CHILDREN'S MUSEUM, INC 16-1683676 page 5
HEGOUE Supplemental Information {continued)
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SCHEDULE G Suppiemental Information Regarding Fundraising or Gaming Activities OMB No. 1545-0047
(Form 990 or QQO—EZ) Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 17, 18, or 19, or if the
organization entered more than $15,000 on Form 990-EZ, line 6a,
Depariment of the Treasury P Attach to Form 998 or Form 980-EZ.
Intarnal Revenue Service P Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for instructions and the latest information. : ]
Name of the organization Employer identification number
HARRISONBURG CHILDREN'S MUSEUM, INC 16-1683676
E EUisl)  Fundraising Activities. Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 17.

Form 990-EZ filers are not required to complete this part.
1 Indicate whether the organization raised funds through aLﬂ—y_iof the following activities. Check all that apply.

a [:] Maii solicitations e Solicitation of non-government grants
b D Internet and email solicitations f D Solicitation of government grants
c D FPhone solicitations g D Special fundraising events

d D In-person solicitations
2a Did the organization have a written or oral agreement with any individual {including officers, directors, trustees,
key employees listed in Form 990, Part VII} or entity in connection with professional fundraising services? I:l Yes I:l No
b If*Yes” list the 10 highest paid individuals or entities (fundraisers) pursuant to agreements under which the fundraiser is to be
compensated at least $5,000 by the organization,

R . {v} Amount paid to . "
. s {tif) Did fundraiser have . . . (vi} Amount paid to
(i) Name anctl_tadafjrezs of individual (ii) Activity custody or control of (lv)fGross qger_;lexpis ] (o‘; re:tam?dtbg). {or retained by)
ar entity (fundraiser) contributions? rom activity un ra‘lzséTr(il}se in organization
Yes No

1
0 0 0

2
0 0 0

3
0 G 0

4
0 g 0

5
0 0 0

1]
0 0 0

7
0 0 0

8
G 0 0

9
G 0 0

10
0 0 0
Total. . . . . . N 0 0 0

3 List all states in which the organization is registered or licensed to solicit contributions or has been notified it is exempt from
registration or licensing,

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the lastructions for Form 98¢ or 990-EZ. Schedule G (Form 990 or 990-EZ} 2018
HTA




G {Farm 990 or 990-E7) 2018

HARRISONBURG CHILDREN'S MUSEUM, INC

16-1683676 Page 2

Fundraising Events. Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 18, or reported
more than $15,000 of fundraising event contributions and gross income on Form 990-EZ, lines 1 and 6b. List

events with gross receipts greater than $5,000.
{a) Event #1 {b) Event #2 {c) Other events {d) Total avents
JAZZ IN JUNE GHT AT THE MUSEL NONE (add col. {a} through
® {event typa) {event typs) {total number} col. {e})
o }
c
@ 1 Grossreceipts. 23,285 22,735 0 46,020
4
2 Less: Contributions 0 0
3 Gross income (line 1 minus
line2). . 23,285 22,735 0 46,020
4 Cashprizes. . 0 0
5 Noncash prizes . . 0 0
n
g 6 Rentifacility costs . 0 0
1]
2
u’j 7 Foodand beverages . . 13,0565 1,802 0 14,957
k3]
§ 8 Entertainment 0 0
9 Other direct expenses . 2,014 4,232 g 6,246
Direct expense summary. Add lines 4 through 9 in column (d) . P i 21,203)
1 Net income summary. Subtract ine 10 from line 3, column (d) . > 24,817

Gaming. Complete if the organization answered “Yes" on Form 990 Part IV lme 19 or reported more
than $15,000 on Form 990-EZ, line 6a.

o . b} Pulf tabsfinstant . d} Total gaming {add
g {a) Bingo birsgzmlplrjog?esssgsz gir;'lgo {c) Other gaming cf)l.}{a{; ﬁ'nrgugh cgoi. {c)) -
&
]| 1 Gross revenue . 0
81 2 Cashprizes. 0
2| 3 Noncash prizes. . 0
m
8| 4 Rent/facility costs. 0
&
5  Qther direct expenses .
[dves % |LlYes % | Llves %.
6 Volunteer labor [ Ino [ InNo I No
7 Direct expense summary. Add lines 2 through 5 in column {d) . . T 0)
8 Net gaming income summary. Subtract line 7 from fine 1, column {(d} . . > 0
9 Enterthe state(s) in which the organization conducts gaming activities: e
a s the arganization licensed to conduct gaming activities in each of these states? Yes No
b NG, XD e
10a Woere any of the organization's gaming licenses revoked, suspended or terminated during the tax year? . Yes No
b Yes, eXPIAIN

Schedute G (Form 980 or 990-EZ) 2018



Schedule G (Form 980 or 890-E7) 2018 HARRISONBURG CHILDREN'S MUSEUM, ING 16-1683676  Page 3
11 Does the organization conduct gaming activities with nonmembers? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . [:l Yes D No
12 Is the organization a grantor, beneficiary or trustee of a trust, or a member of a parinership or other entity

formed to administer charitable gaming?. . . . . . . . . . .. 0000000000 I:lYes DNO
13  Indicate the percentage of gaming activity conducted in:
a Theorganization'sfacility. . . . . . . . . . . . .. 0oL o Lo 13a %
b Anoutside facifity . . . . . . 13b %
14  Enter the name and address of the person who prepares the organlzatlon 5 gammg!spemal events books and
records:
NamE B
Address »

15a Does the organization have a contract with a third party from whom the organization receives gaming

revenue? . . . . ..............[:lYesDNo

b if "Yes," enter the amount of gaming revenue recetved by Ehe organlzatlon s 0 and the
amount of gaming revenue retained by the third party » $ ___ ~  { 0
¢ [f"Yes," enter name and address of the third party:

16  Gaming manager information:

Gaming manager compensation P § 0

Description of services provided W™

D Directorfofficer |:| Emplayee [:] Independent contractor

17 Mandatory distributions:
a s the organization required under state law to make chatitable distributions from the gaming proceads to

retain the state gaming license? . . . . . \:l Yes I:] No
b Enter the amount of disttibutions required under state Iaw to be dlstrlbuted fo other exempt organlzatlons or
spent in the organization's own exempt activities during the tax year  » $ 0

IR Supplemental Information, Provide the explanations required by Part |, line 2b, columns (i) and (v); and
Part lll, lines 9, 8b, 10b, 15b, 15¢, 16, and 17b, as applicable. Also provide any additional information.
See instructions.

Schedule G (Form 930 or 990-EZ) 2018




| _OMB No. 1545-0047

SCHEDULE L Transactions With Interested Persons

(Form 990 or QQO'EZ) » Complete if the organization answered "Yes™ on Form 880, Part 1V, line 25a, 25h, 26, 27,
28a, 28b, or 28¢, or Form 890-EZ, Part V, line 38a or 40h.

Department of the Treasuzy » Attach to Form 980 or Form 990-EZ.

tnternal Revenue Service P Goto www.irs.gov/Form990 for instructions and the latest information, A
Employer identification number

Name of the arganization

HARRISONBURG CHILDREN'S MUSEUM, INC 16-1683676

Excess Benefit Transactions (section 501(c)(3), section 501{c)}{4), and 501(c)(29) organizations only).
Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, fine 25a or 25b, or Form 990-EZ, Part V, line 40b,

b) Relationship between disqualified person and
1 {a} Name of disqualified person ) P organizaﬁ(?n P

(1)
(2)
(3}
“)
(5)
(6)
2 Enter the amount of tax incurred by the organization managers or disqualified persons during the year
under section 4958 .
3 Enter the amount of tax, if any, on line 2, above, reimbursed by the organization .

{d) Comrected?
Yes | No

{c} Description of transaction

—_——— e

» 5
p %

Loans to andfor From Interested Persons.
Complete if tha arganization answered "Yes" on Form 990-EZ, Part V, line 38a or Form 980, Part IV, line 26; or if the

organization reporied an amount on Form 990, Part X, line 5, 6, or 22,

(k) Approved | (i} Written

(a) Name of interested person {b} Relationship | (¢) Purpose of (d) Loan o or {e} Original () Balance due  [{g) in default?
agreement?

with organization loart from the principal ameunt by board or
organization? committee?

To From Yes | No | Yes | No | Yes | No

(1
(2)
(3)
4
(5)
{6)
{7)
(8)
(9
(10}
Total. . . . . . e e e e e e e e e e e S of
Grants or Assistance Benefiting Interested Persons.
Complete if the organization answered “Yes" on Form 880, Part 1V, line 27.

{a} Name of interested person {b) Retationship between interested | {c} Amount of assistance {d} Type of assistance {e) Purpose of assistance
person and the organization

{1)
{2)
(3)
(4)
(5}
(6} o -I;:
(4]
(8)
(9
{19}
For Paperwork Raduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990 or 930-EZ. Schedule L {Form 990 or 890-EZ) 2018
HTA
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Schedule L (Form 980 or 990-E2) 2018 HARRISONBURG CHILDREN'S MUSEUM, INC 16-1683676 Page 2

;F._’a_rt:.l\l- Business Transactions involving Interested Persons.
Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 28a, 28b, or 28c.

(2} Name of interested person {b) Relationship between {c) Amount of {d) Description of fransaction {e} Sharing of
interestad person and the fransaction organizalion's
organization revenues?
Yes | No
(1} CAROLINE SHULL FAMILY MBR - EXEC DIR 34,2521 COMPENSATION X
{2)
(3
4
5
(6)
(7)
(8)

Supplemental Information.
Provide additional information for responses to questions on Schedule L (see instructions).

Schedule L (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2018




| ons No. 1545-0047

SCHEDULE M Noncash Contributions
(Form 990)
B Compilete if the organizations answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, lines 29 or 30.

b Attach to Form 890.
P (Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for instructions and the latest information.

Department of the Treasury
Internal Revenue Service

Name of the arganizatfon
HARRISONBURG CHILDREN'S MUSEUM, INC 16-1683676
ZEOLE  Types of Property

Employer fdentification number

{c)
{a) {b) buth {d)
Check if | Number of confributions or :r?':)(l:;i: f:;;?g’étfg Method of determining
i i ibuted contribution amounts
applicable items contribute Form 990, Part VI, fine 1a noncash u

Art—Works of art .

Art—Historical treasures .

Art—Fractional interests .

Books and publications .

Clothing and household

goods. . . . . . . .

Cars and other vehicles .

Boats and planes .

Intellectual property .

Securities—Publicly traded .

10 Securities—Closely held stock

11 Securities—Partnership, LLC,
or trust interests .

12  Securities—Miscellaneous .

13 Qualified conservation
contribution—Historic I
structures . . ;

14 Qualified conservation
contribution—Other .

15 Real estate—Residentlal .

16 Real estate—Commercial .

17  Real estate—Other.

18 Collactibles .

19  Food inventory . .

20 Drugs and medical supplies .

21 Taxidermy .

22  Historical artifacts .

23  Scientific specimens .

24  Archeological arfifacts .

1
2
3
4
5

0o~

25 Other®»( )
26 Otherw»{ )
2r Otherw( )
28  Other » { }
29  Number of Forms 8283 received by the organization during the tax year for contributions for
which the organization completed Form 8283, Part IV, Donee Acknowledgement. . . . . . . 29

Yes_ No _

30a During the year, did the organization receive by contribution any property reported in Part |, lines 1 through
28, that it must hold for at least three years from the date of the initial contribution, and which isn't required
to ba used for exempt purposes for the entire holding period? .

b [ "Yes," describe the arrangement in Part [I.
31 Does the organization have a gift acceptance policy that requires the review of any nonstandard
contribisiONS? . . . L . . . . o . e e e e e e e e e e e .
32a Does the organization hire or use third parties ar related organizations to solicit, process, or self
noncash cantributions? .

b If"Yes," describe in Part Il
33 If the organization didn't report an amaunt in column (¢) for a type of property for which column (a) is

chacked, describe in Part 1L

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the instructions for Form $80.
HTA

30a

32a

Schedule M {Form 990) 20118




{Form 990) 2018~ HARRISONBURG CHILDREN'S MUSEUM, INC 16-1683676  Page 2
Suppiemental Information. Provide the information required by Part |, lines 30b, 32b, and 33, and whether
the organization is reporting in Part |, column (b), the number of contributions, the number of items received,
or a combination of both. Also complete this part for any additional information.
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SCHEDULE O Supplemental Information to Form 990 or 990-EZ I OMB No. 1545-0047
{Form 990 or 990-EZ) Complete to provide information for responses to specific questions on
Form 980 or 998-EZ or to provide any additional information.
P Attach to Form 990 or 890-EZ.

Lof I 2 N -
Deparment of e Treasury P Go to www.irs.gov/Form930 for tha latest information.

Name of the organization

HARRISONBURG CHILDREN'S MUSEUM, INC 16-1683676

Employer |dent|f|catmnnumber

Form 990, Part |, Line 1: DESCRIPTION OF ORGANIZATION MISSION; EXHIBITS, PROGRAMMING, SCHOO!,

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990 or 990-EZ. Schedule O (Form 980 or 930-E2) (2018)
HTA
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Name of the organization Employer identification number

HARRISONBURG CHILDREN'S MUSEUM, INC 16-1683676

Schedule O (Form 990 or 990-EZ) (2018)




Summary of Unadjusted Basis of Depreciable Property {4562) 12/31/2018
Summary of Depreciable Property by Activity
Unadjusted
Activity Cost or Basis
L0890, . o o e e e e e e e e 2,787,993
Detail of Depreciable Property
Date In Recovery | Yearsin Total Cost | Business/Time | Unadjusted

Activity Asset Description Service Period Service or Basis Use Percent | Cost or Basis

2 1990 LEASEHOLD IMPROVEMENT  1/1/2008 39 11 103,600 100,00% 103,600
3 990 RENOVATIONS 11172010 39 g 120,394 100.00% 120,394
4 [590 RENOVATIONS 7172011 39 8 492,846 100.00% 492,848

5 850 RENQOVATIONS TiH/2012 39 7 38,035 100.00% 38,035

6 1990 RENOVATIONS 7M1/2013 39 8 44,653 100.00% 44 653
71990 RENCVATIONS 10/1/2014 39 5 29,716 100.00% 29,716
8 {990 EXHIBITS 1141/2010 10 9 195,102 100.00% 185,102

9 990 EXHIBITS 7112011 10 8 317,748 100.00% 317,748
10 (990 EXHIBITS 7M/2012 10 7 17,741 100.80% 17,741
11 1690 EXHIBITS 7r/2013 10 6 30,819 100.06% 30,919
12 1990 EXHIBITS 10/7/12014 10 5 3,834 100.00% 3.834
13 [930 COMPUTER (MARCIA) 12/31/2014 5 5 1,699 100.00% 1,699
14 {990 EXHIBITS - DENTAL 10/6/2015 10 4 2,900 100.00% 2,900
15 |990 EXHIBITS - AUTO ZONE 9/22/12015 10 4 2,753 100.00% 2,753
16 [990 OFFICE EQUIPMENT - HAREL  1/8/2015 5 4 293 100.00% - 293
17 1990 BUILDING 8/5/2005 39 14 750,000 100.00% 750,000
18 [990 PROPERTY, EXHIBITS, EQUI 3/31/2017 7 2 456,383 100.00% 456,383
19 990 TREEHOUSE 2/1/2018 7 1 7,946 100.00% 7,946
20 {990 EVERBRITE 2112018 7 1 30,187 100.00% 30,187
21 990 IMPROVEMENTS 11/30/2018 15 1 8,002 100.00% 8,002
22 990 IMPROVEMENTS (IN KIND) | 6/1/2018 39 1 104,800 100.00% 104,800
23 1990 TODDLER CENTER 2172018 7 1 28,442 180.00% 28,442




